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Benpres Holdings Corporation’s investment in the Manila
North Tollways Corporation (MNTC) through First Philippine
Infrastructure Development Corporation took almost nine years
to bear its ﬁrst fruits. Close to seven years were spent securing
government approvals and arranging for commercial credit
facilities, requiring focus, perseverance and fortitude as the project
moved forward during the terms of three Administrations—
Ramos, Estrada and Macapagal-Arroyo. Construction took less
than two years.
Today, Benpres is proud to have led the rehabilitation and
modernization of this vital infrastructure that links Northern
Luzon to the country’s capital, allowing safe and convenient travel
for hundreds of thousands of vehicles carrying people and cargo,
and bringing hope for a more prosperous and vibrant Philippines.
As the slogan of the new North Luzon Expressway says, “The
road to a better life starts here.”
COVER PHOTO: Aerial shot of Balintawak Toll Barrier
courtesy of MNTC.
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At-a-Glance

Power Group through investments in First Philippine Holdings Corporation
First Gen Corporation
Third largest independent power producer with 1,725 megawatts of power
generation capability
2005 Highlights
• Consolidated revenues increased by 25% to US$827.74 million
• Average dispatch of 77% for Santa Rita and San Lorenzo
• Favorable settlement of arbitration case with Siemens

Manila Electric Company
Country’s largest electric utility with over 4 million customers in 25 cities
and 86 municipalities
2005 Highlights
• Consolidated revenues increased to P174.27 billion
• Set aside P5.9 billion as provision for probable losses
• Net loss reduced to P350 million versus restated net loss of P1.03 billion
in 2004

Communications Group
ABS-CBN Broadcasting
The largest media organization providing creative content through a
variety of platforms including broadcast news and entertainment, cable,
ﬁlm and audio recording
2005 Highlights
• Gross revenues increased by 8% to P17 billion
• ABS-CBN Global grew international subscriber base by 30%

Beyond Cable
The largest cable operator in the country with 2/3 of the Metro Manila market
2005 Highlights
• Reduced operating expenses by 24%
• Focus on quality subscribers improved monthly collections by as much as 20%
• EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) of
P507.2 million
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At-a-Glance

BayanTel
Among the leading data services providers, an innovative ﬁxed line
challenger
2005 Highlights
• Total revenues of P5.22 billion, decreased by 3%
• EBITDA of P2.17 billion, increased by 1%

Infrastructure
Manila North Tollways
Rehabilitated and modernized the 84-kilometer North Luzon Expressway,
providing safe, comfortable and efﬁcient access to Northern Philippines
2005 Highlights
• Start of commercial operations on February 10, 2005
• 138 new lane kilometers and 295 upgraded lane kilometers now in use
• Seamless and safe travel conforming to international standards

Property Development
Rockwell Land
Converted a 15.5 hectare property, former site of Meralco power plant,
into a pioneering self-contained community the concept for which has been
copied by other developers across the country
2005 Highlights
• Consolidated revenues of P2.55 billion
• Net income of P288.5 million, 21% higher than P237.75 in 2004

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
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Message of the Chairman and of the President

Fellow shareholders,
With our country’s business sector learning to ignore the political
background noise and just getting on with business, our company, Benpres
Holdings Corporation, started to see signiﬁcant progress in many of its
investee-companies in 2005.
Afﬁliate Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC), together
with its operations and management partner, the Tollways Management
Corporation, successfully began commercial operations of the North
Luzon Expressway (NLE).
First Gas Power Corporation (First Gas), owned through First Gen
Corporation under First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC), was
favorably awarded US$99 million for Tranche 2 of the arbitration case
against Siemens by the Arbitration Tribunal of the International Chamber
of Commerce. First Gas also settled its long-standing dispute with its gas
suppliers resulting in a write-off in take or pay obligations of US$83 million.

Benpres Holdings
Corporation
started to see
signiﬁcant
progress in many
of its investeecompanies in 2005.

Rockwell Land Corporation, sold most of its unﬁnished Joya
Condominium units, and is now working on a sophisticated high-end
complex that will enable it to keep its premier position in the luxury
condominium market.
The issues surrounding the surrender of Benpres’ stake in Maynilad Water
Services, Inc. (Maynilad), in compliance with Court-approved ﬁnancial
rehabilitation for the water utility, also appears to have ﬁnally been resolved,
especially after an annual stockholders’ meeting wherein the Metropolitan
Waterworks and Sewerage System took over Maynilad.
As such, we are now more hopeful about reaching a debt restructuring
agreement with Benpres’ creditors, in an earnest and consensual process we
began ﬁve years ago.
Benpres’ debt today stands at US$400 million, assuming no further
changes in the Maynilad situation. While we seek agreement on the terms
of a realistic and workable debt restructuring, we continue to look toward
enhancing the value of our investments. Hence, all our investee-companies
have work cut out for them in 2006.

2006 targets
For ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN), it is to work
toward recovery. Despite launching new programs and efforts to enhance
client alliances, ABS-CBN continued to lag in the Mega Manila ratings
last year. The recently instituted approach of using integrated distribution
channels for news and current affairs is expected to bear gains for ABS-CBN
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Message of the Chairman and of the President

in the near future, coupled with the headcount reduction program completed
in 2005. Future growth is anchored on the overseas global business with the
landmark agreement between ABS-CBN and DirecTV in the U.S.
For Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (BayanTel), it is to seek sustainability.
After two years of positive gains in revenues and EBITDA, BayanTel is
now developing disruptive products that will be key to its business in a very
competitive telecoms environment. The real challenge for BayanTel remains
on how to allocate its limited resources between its core business and strategic
growth projects.
For Beyond Cable, it is to establish a platform for growth. Amid the
difﬁculties it faced these past years, Beyond Cable must gear up to establish
a platform for growth: an encryption system that aims to increase ARPU
(average revenue per user), improve market penetration and solve signal theft;
the extension of loan repayment terms and action plans to improve EBITDA
to fund its growth; and a reduction in its programming cost from 54% to 42%
of revenues.
For FPHC, it is to address strategic concerns. In 2005, FPHC registered
a consolidated net income of P4.9 billion, or a growth of 28% over its 2004
performance of P3.7 billion. This growth was primarily driven by First
Philippine Infrastructure Development Corporation arising from its NLE
project, Meralco’s reduced losses and the positive performances of the power
generation, infrastructure and property groups, as well as the sale of part of
our SiRF shares in the U.S.
While prospects for 2006 and onwards appear to be strong, there is a need
to address certain strategic concerns, particularly in the power generation
sector to ensure realization of its growth story. It is good to note that First
Gen raised capital through its initial public offering (IPO) in February 2006.
Gross proceeds of the IPO amounted to P9.1 billion (including exercise of
over-allotment option), with the net proceeds to be applied, among others,
toward expanding the power generation business by acquiring power
generation assets, engaging in greenﬁeld projects, as well as exploring the
potential of renewable sources of energy.
At the same time, FPHC is endeavoring to develop its manufacturing
portfolio into a core business. We think we have proven to ourselves that
given the right products, the right technologies and capable managers, we can
compete against the best in the world. We have been able to hold our own in
our home market and we now have the conﬁdence that we can carry the ﬁght
to the overseas market.
For this reason, FPHC organized First Philec, an intermediate holding
company, to serve as a vehicle for the growth of its manufacturing activities

Benpres Holdings
Corporation Chairman
of the Board and Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer
Oscar M. Lopez
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Message of the Chairman and of the President

in both the electrical and electronics sectors to core business proportions.
We envision the day in the not too distant future when manufacturing
will join power and toll road operations as one of the principal strategic
activities of FPHC.
For MNTC, it is to attain the needed trafﬁc volume. Since MNTC
started commercial operations on February 10, 2005, trafﬁc volume
on the NLE has always been its primary concern in view of the high
cost of fuel and toll rates and the competition from toll-free MacArthur
Highway. A ﬁve-pronged approach to trafﬁc enhancement will continue
to be the centerpiece of its activities aimed at attaining the needed
volume.
For Rockwell, it is to ensure that dividends ﬂow. Steady cash ﬂows
from its sales will enable the company to reduce its debt level and allow
it to ﬁnally start its dividend payout. To sustain this for the long term,
Rockwell will diversify into more affordable condominium projects and
lower-risk horizontal development projects.

More challenges ahead
Even as Benpres tackles the problem of its huge debt in 2006, there are
clearly many unique challenges facing all of our businesses.
We await the resolution of Meralco’s case on its unbundled rates. If
the Supreme Court rules in favor of Meralco, then Meralco can move
forward positively to what promises to be a most interesting year for the
implementation of EPIRA (Electric Power Industry Reform Act). If not,
then we could have another problem in our hands.
We await the outcome of hearings on the Ultra stampede in which 71
fans of ABS-CBN’s top noontime show, Wowowee, perished tragically.
ABS-CBN paid for the burial of the deceased, covered the medical
expenses of the injured, and established the 71 Dreams Foundation to
facilitate holistic assistance and assure substantive long-term beneﬁts to
the bereaved families. But ABS-CBN’s responsibility goes beyond the
ﬁnancial and while ensuring such an incident will not happen again,
it is not shirking its moral and legal obligations to those affected by the
unfortunate accident.
Benpres Holdings
Corporation President
and Chief Operating
Ofﬁcer Angel S. Ong
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And because BayanTel was not one of the four telecom companies
awarded with a 3G franchise by the government, we continue to look
for possible ways for BayanTel to somehow develop its niche in wireless
communications. It will be extremely difﬁcult to crack the duopoly
currently enjoyed by the leading mobile phone operators, but there
should be other ways to further build value into BayanTel.

Message of the Chairman and of the President

In all our operating companies, we have a continuing commitment
to achieve world-class business excellence in the way we manage our
businesses, and in the way we set standards for our performance. When
things are not going too well, there is a tendency for business managers
to concentrate on shorter-term business results using short-term
solutions. There is nothing inherently wrong with that, since survival
and proﬁtability are our primary accountabilities as managers. But our
shareholders can rest assured that we are not forgetting, nor neglecting,
nor postponing the disciplines required to ensure longer term success.
As a group, we have been able to align and certify many of our
companies to the ISO 9000 quality standard, and the complementary
ISO 14000 and OHSAS 18000 standards for environmental practice and
occupational safety. But that is only a beginning. To compare ourselves
with the best in the world, and to match their best practices, we need
to start and persevere in our journeys to excellence, for which we have
adopted the Baldridge framework, employing tools like Six Sigma and
LEAN Manufacturing.
This quest for excellence is not something we can turn on or off
whenever a crisis occurs. It is a quest that we must persevere with,
knowing that the crisis will pass and that we will still be responsible for
transforming our companies into world-class competitors.

This quest for
excellence is not
something we
can turn on or off
whenever a crisis
occurs.

If the myriad challenges facing our group of companies in 2006 are
resolved in a favorable manner, then perhaps we would be able to say
that the worst of our problems are behind us and we can focus on moving
forward with the task of growing our businesses.
So within the Lopez Group, we have issued this challenge: let us not
permit ourselves to similarly be crippled by disunity and complacency
that we see in the national scene. Rather, let us use adversity as our
motivation to unite, to try harder and, ultimately, to triumph. We don’t
have to look beyond our own group to identify models to emulate, as this
report shows.
To all our stakeholders, please accept our sincere gratitude for your
continued support and conﬁdence.

OSCAR M. LOPEZ
Chairman and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

ANGEL S. ONG
President and
Chief Operating Ofﬁcer
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Power

First Gen Corporation’s Sta. Rita power plant

In 2005, FPHC posted consolidated revenues of
P55.5 billion, an increase of 36% from P40.8 billion the
previous year.
Net income attributable to equity holders was at P4.9
billion, higher by 32% from P3.7 billion the previous
year. FPHC’s sterling performance stems from the
twin values created from the commercial operations
of Manila North Tollways Corporation beginning
February 2005 and the continued robustness of First
Gen Corporation (First Gen) as an independent
producer of clean, earth-friendly energy for electricity.
As stated in the chairman’s message, FPHC’s new
mandate is to grow its manufacturing portfolio to
provide the company with a strategic third stream
of strong and stable revenues. In pursuit of this goal,
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FPHC organized First Philec, a holding company that
will focus on developing its manufacturing activities in
the electrical and electronics sectors to core business
proportions.

Power Generation

First Gen Corporation’s consolidated revenues
increased by 25% to US$827.74 million from
US$661.53 million the previous year. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in its plants’ net
dependable capacity (NDC), improved dispatch, and
higher fuel prices. The NDC of Santa Rita increased
from 996MW in 2004 to 1,000MW in 2005, and
from 502MW to 503MW for San Lorenzo. Dispatch
was also signiﬁcantly higher in 2005 with both plants
averaging 77% compared to the previous year’s
65% and 58%, for Santa Rita and San Lorenzo,

Power

respectively. Although fuel is a pass-through risk
fully assumed by Meralco and does not affect the
net income of First Gen, the increase in fuel prices,
brought mainly by the surging oil prices in the
international market, also contributed to the increase
in revenues.
In addition to the increases in dispatch and
capacity, the US$5.1 million income from the
settlement of the arbitration case (Tranche 2) with
Siemens augmented First Gen’s net income. In
November 2005, the arbitration tribunal ruled that
First Gen’s subsidiary, First Gas Power Corporation
(FGPC), is entitled to liquidated damages amounting
to US$99 million as a result of the delays incurred by
Siemens in constructing the Santa Rita power plant.
Thus, the ﬁnancial position of First Gen is stronger
after US$94 million of payables were written-off
as a consequence of the Tranche 2 ruling against
Siemens.
In February 2006, First Gen was listed in the
Philippine Stock Exchange, grossing P9.1 billion
(including exercise of over-allotment option) in
the initial public offering (IPO) of its shares. IPO
proceeds will fund First Gen’s strategic objective of
expanding its business through the acquisition of
existing plants, the building of new plants or engaging
in what is called greenﬁeld projects, as well as
exploring the potential of renewable sources of energy.
Another positive development is the favorable
settlement of the dispute with the subsidiaries’ gas
sellers or the Malampaya consortium. In March
2006, First Gen’s operating companies FGPC
and FGP Corp., agreed with the gas sellers to a
combined US$83 million write-off in gas take-orpay obligations. The remaining gas take-or-pay
obligations are pass-through to Meralco, which is
expected to pay the obligation on a quarterly basis
until 2009.
Last year, First Gen shifted its ﬁnancial reporting
to the US dollar, its functional currency. This is in
accordance with the Philippine Accounting Standards
which took effect on January 1, 2005.

Power Distribution

Meralco reported a net loss of P350 million in
2005, 66% smaller than 2004’s restated net loss
of P1.03 billion. Meralco continued to provide for
probable losses in the event of a ﬁnal and executory
adverse decision on its unbundling case before the
Supreme Court.
Meralco’s tariffs were unbundled in June 2003, as
required by the Electric Power Industry Reform Act of
2001. The unbundled rates approved by ERC resulted
in a total average increase of P0.17 per kilowatt-hour
(kWh) over May 2003 levels. This consists of an
P0.0835 hike in generation and transmission charges
and an P0.0865 rate adjustment for Meralco, its ﬁrst
since 1994.
Meralco set aside P5.9 billion as provision for
probable losses, which is management’s best estimate of
such losses up to the end of 2005 should the Supreme
Court rule with ﬁnality against Meralco. It had set aside
P9.82 billion as provision for probable losses in 2004.
In addition, the adoption of the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards/Philippine Accounting Standards
affected the reported ﬁnancial position, ﬁnancial
performance and cash ﬂows of Meralco.
Revenues increased by 15% to P174.27 billion from
P151.61 billion, while total expenses increased by 14%
to P175.99 billion from P154.70 billion.
Energy sales were ﬂat, up by a slight 0.6%. Sales
to commercial users rose by 3.6% but residential sales
contracted by 2.2%. Industrial sales were likewise ﬂat,
nudging 0.2% higher.
Despite regulatory setbacks, Meralco’s system
performance continued to improve, with 14.69%
and 18.87% improvements in system reliability and
availability, respectively. Meralco’s customer satisfaction
index (CSI) continued to improve as well, registering
better ratings in all market segments. Meralco scored
an overall CSI of 7.17 in 2005 or 4.4% higher than 6.87
in 2004.

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
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Communications

Media

In 2005, ABS-CBN’s gross revenues increased by
8% to P17 billion, from P15.77 billion the year before.
The strong performance of its international operations
continued to drive the business, as airtime revenues
declined by 6% to P10.3 billion from P11 billion in
2004. Net sales and services grew 6% to P5 billion
from P4.7 billion, led by ABS-CBN Global which saw
its total international subscriber base growing by 30%
year-on-year. This translates to 2.0 million viewers
worldwide by end-2005.
License fees amounting to P1.6 billion were

booked in 2005, representing revenues from the initial
phase of the migration of existing direct-to-home
(DTH) subscribers to DirecTV’s platform, as well
as take-up of new subscribers. DirecTV is one of the
leading DTH system providers in the U.S. Under an
agreement, DirecTV will have the exclusive right to
air The Filipino Channel or TFC package on its DTH
platform. In return, DirecTV will pay license fees to
ABS-CBN based on the number of subscribers who will
avail of the service during the migration period.
Total expenses increased by 13% to P16.6 billion

ABS-CBN rooftop
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Clockwise from top left: Broadcast journalist Korina Sanchez, DZMM station manager Angelo Palmones and TV Patrol anchor Ted
Failon on the radio booth of DZMM’s top-rated morning program Tambalang Failon at Sanchez; a sound engineer for Star Records
mixes music; ABS-CBN OB (outdoor broadcast) vans; live TV audiences love such shows as Wowowee and Asap.

from P14.7 billion. Cash operating expenses went up
by 13% while non-cash operating expenses, primarily
depreciation and amortization, grew by 11%. These
expenses include non-recurring charges in the amount
of P1.4 billion related to the migration of DTH
subscribers in the U.S., as well as expenses related to
the employee reduction program or Special Separation
Package (SSP) implemented beginning July 2005.
Around 400 employees or approximately 20% of ABSCBN headcount availed of the SSP. Without these nonrecurring items, total expenses went up by only 3%.
With expense growth of 12% outpacing revenue
growth of 8%, net income ended 62% lower at P288
million from P751 million in 2004. EBITDA (earnings

before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization)
was down by 10% to P3.6 billion with EBITDA margin
at 21% compared to 25% in prior year.
To strengthen its programming, ABS-CBN has
been innovating with new show concepts led by the
groundbreaking Pinoy Big Brother, a joint production
with Dutch content provider Endemol that has
counterpart shows in 46 countries. The News and
Current Affairs Group was also reorganized with
veteran international journalist Maria Ressa as head.
A Standards and Ethics Manual was adopted to guide
all ABS-CBN news personnel in their coverage, in a
committed effort to raise performance to world-class
standards.

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
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Third, from a net cash deﬁcit of Php50.0m in
January 2005, SkyCable’s Metro Manila operations
turned cash neutral by the end of the year.
Fourth, SkyCable’s provincial operations instituted
a series of strategic price increases and tight cost
management initiatives.
Overall, these milestones contributed to achieving
positive consolidated (Metro Manila and provincial
operations including Pilipino Cable Corporation)
EBITDA of P507.2 million in 2005, its highest ever.
Fully acknowledging the widespread problem
of illegal connections, SkyCable initiated in 2005
extensive, coordinated efforts to enforce local
ordinances on cable theft. Its Illegal Connection Drives
involved local law enforcers, media and legal teams to
clean-up targeted areas. Criminal cases have been ﬁled
against repeat offenders and convictions are hoped for
in mid-2006.
SKY Cable head end

Cable

2005 saw SkyCable focusing on improving and
strengthening the fundamentals of the business with
the goal of turning income positive by 2007. SkyCable
accomplished several milestones setting the stage for full
ﬁnancial recovery.
First, SkyCable in Metro Manila reduced its monthly
operating expenses by 24% through a three-point
cost reduction plan: (1) renegotiating programming
contracts down to more sustainable levels, (2)
optimizing manpower count by rationalizing the
organizational structure and (3) implementing tight
operating expense management processes.
Second, to address signiﬁcant disconnections,
the company focused on driving quality sales which
reduced the monthly churn rate from a high of 5% to its
current levels of 2%. The focus on quality subscribers
also improved cash ﬂow with monthly collections
growing by as much as 20% within the year.
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Finally, together with the Philippine Cable TV
Association, the company intensiﬁed its lobby for the
Cable Bill, which makes the theft of cable TV signal a
criminal offense. As of this printing, the Bill is already
on ﬁnal reading at the House of Representatives.
To drive future growth, SkyCable made a signiﬁcant
investment in digital signal encryption. This
investment will enable SkyCable to:
• test the impact of signal encryption in reducing
the number of illegal customers and increasing the
number of paying subscribers,
• test launch prepaid cable TV services and
• launch a premium tier cable TV service, SkyCable
Platinum, with the objective of generating higher
Average Revenues Per Unit (ARPU).
SkyCable is hoping to achieve full-year proﬁtability in
2007 and, depending on a successful implementation of
the digital encryption program, is hoping to set the stage
for future revenue growth as well.

Communications

Telecommunications

The telecom ﬁxed-line business continued to be
challenging, with traditional revenue streams facing
downward trend including landline subcribers. In
2005, BayanTel achieved total revenues of P5.1
billion, amidst the continuing pressure of waning long
distance revenues. BayanTel was able to outpace the
negative trend in the industry as LEC (local exchange
carrier) posted positive 1% growth over 2004. Taking
into account one-off charges, adjusted EBITDA
reached P2.1 billion. These one-off charges include
organizational review costs and accrued charges.
BayanTel continued to show strength in data services
with DSL customers doubling to over 11,000 as of
end-2005. Revenues from Internet and traditional data
services grew by 34% and 9%, respectively, from 2004.
This signaled an accelerating demand for data services not
only from the corporate sector but also from the residential
and small and mid-size businesses as well. Meanwhile,
growth in BayanTel’s LEC customer base continued with
subscribers totaling 279,000 as of end-2005.
A major highlight is the high satisfaction rating
from its customers. Voice customers gave BayanTel a
signiﬁcantly higher rating of 83% in 2005, the highest
rating in the history of the company making it at par
with world standards. For data customers, tracking of
satisfaction ratings was initiated in the ﬁrst half of 2005.
The ﬁrst half survey resulted in a 64% rating while the
second half reading resulted in a 75% rating. BayanTel
considers this as a breakthrough performance,
considering it was achieved in a narrow period of just
six months.
BayanTel spent the year deliberately improving
its capability to offer and develop new products
and services. It launched VoIP (Voice over Internet
Protocol) in July 2005 and signiﬁcantly reduced the
cost of providing DSL. The savings were passed on to
customers. It also prepared for the launch of its Wireless
Local Loop project, which began selling under the
brand name SPAN starting March 2006.
From top: BayanTel customer service personnel at Bayan Centers consistently
rate well with customers; an engineer does a routine check of network
facilities; BayanTel service vehicles all ready for the day’s new installations

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
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Infrastructure

North Luzon Expressway toll plaza
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Tollways

Commercial operations of the new North Luzon
Expressway (NLE) by the Manila North Tollways
Corporation commenced on February 10, 2005.
Vehicle trafﬁc fell below the project consultant’s
projections, largely attributed to the twin increases
in gasoline prices and in the toll fees. Nonetheless,
MNTC delivered strong ﬁnancial results. MNTC
and its operator and afﬁliate, Tollways Management
Corporation, gave motorists a completely new travel
experience. Motorists now enjoy shorter, more
predictable travel time and the comfort of wide,
smoothly paved roads.
Comely toll tellers man 147 new fully computerized
toll booths and toll lanes in four toll plazas greeted
surprised motorists with their captivating smiles. A total
of 138 new lane kilometers were constructed, along with
the upgraded 295 lane kilometers, while 25 permanent
exit stations were widened.
Not visible to motorists are other top-of-the-line
service facilities, including 14 cameras strategically
located along the world-class expressway that allow a
central control room round-the-clock monitoring of
trafﬁc ﬂow, as well as dispatching emergency response
teams at short notice. In addition, there are message
signages apprising motorists with up-to-the minute
trafﬁc situation updates, and over 100 call boxes

stationed along the NLE that distressed motorists can
use for prompt assistance.
All these improvements spell convenient, seamless
and safe travel for the NLE users under parameters
that conform to international design standards for
expressways.
The rehabilitated North Luzon Expressway cut
travel time from Balintawak to Sta. Ines (Mabalacat,
Pampanga) by 50%, giving rise to more economic zones
in Central Luzon such as First Clarkway Industrial park
in San Simon, Pampanga, Hermosa Economic Zone in
Hermosa, Bataan, Palayan City Agri-Industrial Center
in Palayan City, Nueva Ecija and PNOC Petrochemical
Industrial Estate II in Mariveles, Bataan.
The mothballed Clark Expo in Mabalacat,
Pampanga, was also recently revived with a trade
exposition featuring some 100 exhibitors. Heightened
business activity created an estimated 34,000 additional
jobs, as the Diosdado Macapagal International
Airport sprang to life with a substantial increase in
ﬂight frequencies resulting in another 60 percent
rise in passenger and cargo trafﬁc. Inspired by these
developments, the local government of Pampanga
approved a new local investment bill meant to attract
more investors to the province.

Ofﬁcer-on-duty does roundthe-clock trafﬁc monitoring at
the central control room

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
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Other Investments

Rockwell Land Corporation
All 618 units of The Manansala were delivered six
months ahead of schedule to the delight of the newest
residents of Rockwell Center. The Manansala was
the ﬁrst residential development to be marketed in the
unexplored U.S. market. Rockwell Land Corporation
was ﬁrst in bringing its products to roadshows in key
cities in the U.S., selling to the Filipino investor market.
Its success in this new market caught the attention of
competing Philippine developers who followed suit.

billion in 2004. Meanwhile, retail revenues grew
6% year-on-year on account of an increase in rental
income. The cash ﬂows provided by the full payment
of buyers with the handover of The Manansala and
the brisk sales take-up of Joya enabled the signiﬁcant
pay-off of debts in the second half of 2005 from the P2
billion mark down to P806 million, yielding a healthy
debt-to-equity ratio of 0.8x. As a result, net income
improved by 21% year-on-year to P288.5 million.

Rockwell Land Corporation launched Joya Lofts
and Flats in 2004, becoming the ﬁrst to introduce the
Loft design to the local market. The pioneering concept
was again picked up by competitors who began selling
similarly designed offerings.

With only three spaces left for development inside
Rockwell Center, Rockwell Land is now pursuing
opportunities in key locations in Metro Manila,
through potential joint venture with landowners. These
projects, which aim to cater to the middle market
residential segment, are targeted to be launched in
the next two years and will capitalize on the Rockwell
brand. The company is also looking into developing
residential leisure projects outside of Metro Manila
in tourism destinations such as Tagaytay, Baguio and
Batangas. The planned developments will be situated
in high-end exclusive locations and will continue to
carry Rockwell’s top quality seal. These projects aim
to meet client demand for a wider range of Rockwell
products and services, and will be the company’s focus
in the next ﬁve years.

By the end of 2005, Joya was 92% sold with
construction in full swing and ahead of schedule.
Rockwell Land registered slightly lower consolidated
revenues at P2.55 billion, mainly due to lower revenue
recognition of condominium sales, as revenues from
The Manansala tapered off. This was partially offset
with the start of the revenue recognition of Joya.
Total revenues recognized from condominium sales
amounted to P1.49 billion, 30% lower than P2.13

Power Plant mall supports the lifestyle needs of Rockwell residents
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The Manansala
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Professional Services,
Inc. (The Medical City)

The Medical City posted a 37% increase in gross
revenues and a 41% improvement in gross proﬁt.
Operating income also increased by 29% while net
income amounted to P55.1 million or 19% less than
2004 ﬁgures brought about by total interest expense of
P220 million on total outstanding loans of P2.4 billion
as of December 31, 2004.
Admissions increased by 20% to 37,070, evidence
of The Medical City’s articulated mission to place
“Patients on Center Stage” and to give “Service of
Greater Worth.”

The Medical City provides
excellent tertiary health care
with Patients on Center Stage,
Service of Greater Worth
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ABS-CBN Foundation, Inc.
and ABS-CBN Bayan Foundation
ABS-CBN Foundation, Inc. (AFI) pursues “a better
world for our children” through a range of programs
designed to enable Filipino children to achieve their full
potential.
In 2005, AFI’s Bantay Bata 163 received and
acted upon 25,467 calls in 2005 of which 6,735 were
counseled through phone. An average of 6 children
are rescued per month and provided with shelter.
The Children’s Village in Norzagaray, Bulacan
housed 123 children while 1,294 children received
medical assistance and 149 received legal assistance.
Scholarships were given to 297 children – most of
which were rescued by Bantay Bata and reintegrated
with their families. Bantay Bata 163 received the
Gold Quill of Excellence in the Communication
Management for Economic, Social and Environmental
Category from the International Association of Business

Communication in March 2005. A major development
in 2005 was the activation of hotline 163 nationwide.
Previously available only in Manila and Davao, it
enables the reporting and intervention in child abuse
cases all over the country.
E-Media (education through multi-media) persevered
in its pioneering work of producing educational
programs for young viewers. Stocked with awards for its
Sine’skwela, Hirayamanawari, Bayani, MathTinik, and
Epol/Apple, its latest show Art Jam, a show that inspires
children’s creativity by using everyday materials, won
the 2005 Golden Dove Award as Best TV Children’s
Program by the Kapisanan ng mga Brodkasters ng
Pilipinas and the Anak TV Seal from the Southeast
Asian Foundation. 953 schools received E-Media
educational TV packages and 600 teachers from 356
schools were trained in TV-assisted instruction.

Sagip Kapamilya, turnover of farm tractor in Infanta and medical mission in Real, Quezon
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Students of Itaas Elementary School join Lakad Mo, Pangarap Ko 2 Nationwide Na
‘To as beneﬁciaries of Knowledge Channel Foundation’s corporate sponsors

Bantay Kalikasan, AFI’s environmental arm,
envisions a responsibly protected and preserved
Philippine environment. By December 2005, it had
successfully reforested 1,344 hectares of the 1,500
hectares earmarked for rehabilitation at the La Mesa
Watershed. Working toward self-sufﬁciency, Bantay
Kalikasan continues to administer operations of the
La Mesa Eco Park, an alternative eco-friendly leisure
park within the watershed. Two mini-projects were also
launched in 2005: the BK Coinbank and the La Mesa
Ecomart, a shop offering purely organic products.
Bantay Baterya, BK’s junk lead-acid battery
recovery and recycling project, effectively expanded
its operations nationwide. Launched in October 2000,
battery donations have increased by 50% each year.
As of end-2005, it had received a total donation of
1,280 tons of junk batteries from more than 86 partnercompanies, mostly industry leaders.
As of June 2005, Sagip Kapamilya raised P95.7
million in cash and P63.4 million in kind from
10,000 individual and corporate donors for the
victims of the four destructive typhoons or 2004.
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Through partnerships with the National Disaster
Coordinating Committee, Gawad Kalinga, Ateneo
de Manila University, Department of Social Welfare
and Development, local government units, and other
non-government organizations, Sagip Kapamilya used
the entrusted funds to bring relief to 86,603 families (as
of June 2005). Roads were cleared amd the program
is now focusing efforts in rehabilitating Northern
Quezon province with poverty alleviation programs
such as capital and technical assistance for familybased livelihood, support to community-based health
and shelter programs, and sustainable agro-forestry
development. A total of 7,614 people (1,269 families)
in the three municipalities have started putting up the
initial 11 family-based livelihood projects intended to
increase their productivity and income by at least 30%
above local poverty threshold.
Meanwhile, the microﬁnance activities of AFI served
a cumulative 44,776 clients as of December 2005 with
repayment rate of 97%. Barangay Leadership and
Business Development Trainings were given to 1,089
barangay members and Leadership Trainings were
conducted for 772 micro-ﬁnance clients.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Knowledge Channel
Foundation, Inc.

Lopez Group Foundation

Now on its second year, Project TEAM-Mindanao
or Television Education for the Advancement of
Muslim Mindanao, provided Knowledge Channel
to 66 public schools in the ARMM (Autonomous
Region of Muslim Mindanao) and produced 30
episodes of livelihood and advocacy programs for
out-of-school youth. By the end of its third year,
TEAM-Mindanao targets to connect 150 public
schools in the region.

In October 2005, LGFI obtained PCNC (Philippine
Council for Non-Government Organization
Certiﬁcation) Accreditation and nurtured partner
relations with CSR networks and associations both
locally and abroad.

The Knowledge Channel Foundation, Inc.
(KCFI) is committed to bring quality education to
all Filipinos by using television as an effective and
efﬁcient teaching tool. Its ﬂagship all-educational
channel, the Knowledge Channel (KCh), is now
viewed by more than 3 million cable television users
in 59 provinces nationwide. As of January 2006, the
channel is available to 2.7 million students in 1,688
public schools in 44 provinces nationwide.

2005 was a year of recognition and citation for
KCFI and its president, Rina Lopez Bautista with
eight awards conferred by various organizations.
Lopez Bautista was conferred the IABC’s CEO
Excel Award of Excellence and the Peace Award
for Literary by the Rotary International of Quezon
City. A ﬁrst for the country, SkyCable bagged the
Asian CSR Award for Education for pioneering the
Knowledge Channel while on the homefront, KCFI
received CMMA’s SERVIAM Award. A fundraising
project, Lakad Mo, Pangarap Ko won the Anvil
Award of Merit and IABC’s Gold Quill Award of
Excellence. Recently, TEAM Mindanao bagged
the Lopez Group Achievement Award for Public
Responsibility.

Lakad Mo, Pangarap Ko 2 Nationwide Na ‘To was
held in November 2005 and was participated in by
more than 8,000 walkers from three key areas, namely,
Metro Manila, Metro Cebu and Davao. This year’s
walkathon was in partnership with the Department
of Education, Department of Tourism and the Lopez
Group of Companies.

The Lopez Group Foundation, Inc. (LFGI) published
the ﬁrst-ever consolidated corporate social responsibility
(CSR) initiatives in the Lopez Group with BRIDGES,
which showed the history of philanthropy in the
Lopez Family, and the various programs and projects
of the Foundation’s member companies. BRIDGES
strengthened internal and external communications on
CSR efforts in the Lopez Group, allowing for regular
interaction and coordinated support for members’
programs.

LGFI recently acquired a grant for installing a
Family Planning program in the workplace that
ﬁve Lopez companies will design and implement.
As the hub for coordination, LGFI is assisting in
group-wide events and programs such as the 105th
birth anniversary celebration of Eugenio Lopez Sr.,
in relation to the theme of bridging the legacy of
nationalism, entrepreneurship and public service to the
third generation Lopezes.

A mud crab
raiser in Infanta,
Quezon, shows
off his harvest.
Funded as a
livelihood project
by ABS-CBN’s
Sagip Kapamilya,
mud crab raising
is one of the
community
activities
documented by
LGFI in its site
visits on behalf of
stakeholders.
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The management of Benpres Holdings Corporation is responsible for all information and representations
contained in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and
reﬂect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with an appropriate
consideration to materiality.
PANTONE 402 U
1pt

Pantone Black

3.0

16pt Pantone Trans. White 98.5
In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting
which provides for the necessary
internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against
unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the company’s
audit commitee and to its external auditors: (i) all signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in the design or operation of internal
controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report ﬁnancial data; (ii) material weaknesses
in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise signiﬁcant
roles in the internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the consolidated ﬁnancial statements before such statements are approved and
submitted to the stockholders of the Company. SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed
by the stockholders, have examined the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Company in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and have expressed their opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such examinination, in their report to the Board of Directors and stockholders.

OSCAR M. LOPEZ
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

SALVADOR G. TIRONA
Chief Finance Ofﬁcer
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Report of Independent Auditors

SGV & CO

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

Phone: (632) 891-0307
Fax:
(632) 819-0872
www.sgv.com.ph
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-F

Report of Independent Auditors

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Benpres Holdings Corporation
4th Floor, Benpres Building
Meralco Avenue, Pasig City
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Benpres Holdings Corporation and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Philippines.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines.
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the financial condition of the Company as
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. As discussed in Note 1(b), the ability of
the Company to continue operating as a going concern depends on the success of its Balance Sheet
Management Plan. As discussed in Note 1(c), as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the carrying values
of the Company’s investments and deposits in and advances to Bayan Telecommunications Holdings
Corporation (Bayantel) have been reduced to zero with the remaining possible claims against the
Parent Company credited to “Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments” account in the
consolidated balance sheets. All of the above foregoing factors indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which raise substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue operating as a
going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going
concern. As also discussed in Note 10(b), Manila Electric Company (MERALCO), an associate of
First Philippine Holdings Corporation (which is an associate accounted for under the equity method),
has pending realty tax assessments and local franchise tax cases. The final outcome of these matters

SGV & Co is a member practice of Ernst & Young Global
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-2cannot presently be determined, and no provision for any additional liability that may arise from an
adverse decision on these cases has been made in the financial statements of MERALCO. To address
these possible liabilities, MERALCO filed an application with the Energy Regulatory Commission for
a recovery mechanism which is pending approval. The Company also has no provision for its share in
any additional liability that may arise from the said cases.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Maria Vivian C. Ruiz
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 83687
SEC Accreditation No. 0073-A
Tax Identification No. 102-084-744
PTR No. 4180823, January 2, 2006, Makati City
April 28, 2006
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Financial Statements

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in Millions)

December 31
2004
(As restated Note 4)
2005
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7 and 27)
Short-term investments (Note 7)
Trade and other receivables - net (Notes 8, 19, 27 and 32)
Program rights - current (Notes 13 and 32)
Derivative assets (Note 27)
Other current assets - net (Notes 9 and 32)
Total Current Assets

P
=2,341
–
4,695
799
193
828
8,856

=4,527
P
697
4,312
783
–
1,240
11,559

Noncurrent Assets
Investments and advances - net (Notes 1, 2, 3, 10, 19 and 32)
Property and equipment - net (Notes 11 and 16)
Long-term receivables from related parties (Notes 2, 19 and 27)
Noncurrent program rights and other intangible assets (Note 13)
Deferred tax assets (Note 24)
Other noncurrent assets - net (Notes 1, 2, 12, 14, 19, 27 and 32)
Total Noncurrent Assets

17,609
10,761
2,342
1,517
294
3,486
36,009

16,327
15,098
2,191
1,548
42
17,546
52,752

P
=44,865

=64,311
P

P
=8,866

=9,793
P

11,646

18,792

10,361
104
30,977

10,441
–
39,026

4,320
885
–
5,205

5,174
2,833
9,295
17,302

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 15, 19, 25, 27 and 32)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
(Notes 1, 11, 12, 16 and 27)
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments
(Notes 1, 17 and 27)
Derivative liabilities (Note 27)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - net of current portion
(Notes 1, 11, 12, 16 and 27)
Other noncurrent liabilities (Notes 18, 24 and 32)
Payable to MWSS (Note 3)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
(Forward)
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-2December 31
2004
(As restated Note 4)
2005
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Capital stock (Note 30)
Additional paid-in capital
Share in equity adjustment from translation (Note 10)
Share in unrealized gain on fair value adjustments of availablefor-sale investments
Deficit (Notes 1, 4 and 10)
Minority Interests (Note 1)
Total Equity
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P
=4,581
6,766
233

=4,581
P
6,766
820

396
(9,239)
2,737

–
(10,214)
1,953

5,946
8,683

6,030
7,983

P
=44,865

=64,311
P

Financial Statements

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in Millions)

Years Ended December 31
2004
(As restated Notes 3 and 4)
2005
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUES
Airtime
Sales and services
License fees (Note 29)
EXPENSES (INCOME)
General and administrative expenses (Notes 11, 23, 25 and 32)
Production costs (Notes 11, 13, 22, 25 and 32)
Interest and financing charges (Notes 16 and 27)
Equity in net earnings of associates (Notes 4 and 10)
Cost of sales and services (Notes 11, 13, 20, 25 and 32)
Provisions for investments at equity, deposits
and advances (Notes 1, 10 and 12)
Agency commission, incentives and co-producer’s
share (Notes 21 and 32)
Reversal of excess of accumulated losses
over acquisition cost (Note 3)
Foreign exchange losses (income) - net
Loss on dilution of equity interest (Notes 10)
Interest income
Others

P
=10,334
5,094
1,619
17,047
5,959
5,691
2,682
(2,566)
2,374

=11,087
P
4,685
–
15,772
4,286
5,468
2,244
(1,573)
2,384

2,319

320

2,085

2,196

(1,089)
(840)
492
(297)
(408)
16,402

–
269
–
(198)
(370)
15,026

645

746

438
(247)

324
(46)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

454

468

INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Note 3)

685

(2,298)

P
=1,139

(P
=1,830)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 24)
Current
Deferred

NET INCOME (LOSS)
(Forward)
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Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests
Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Notes 4 and 28)
Basic
For income (loss) for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Parent
For income from continuing operations attributable
to equity holders of the Parent
For income (loss) from discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the Parent
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2004
(As restated Notes 3 and 4)
2005
P
=732
407
P
=1,139

(P
=1,205)
(625)
(P
=1,830)

P
=0.1598

(P
=0.2630)

0.0639

0.0657

0.0958

(0.3287)

Financial Statements

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts in Millions)

Total Equity Attributable to equity holders of the Parent

At January 1, 2004, as
previously reported
Effect of changes due to the
change in accounting policies
(Note 4):
At January 1, 2004, as restated
Equity adjustment from
translation during the year
Net loss for the year
Total income and expense
for the year
Minority interest
Deposit for future stock
subscription
Dividends
At December 31, 2004

Total
Equity

P
=6,195

P
=7,970

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Share in
Equity
Adjustment
from
Translation

Unrealized
Gain on
Fair Value
Adjustment
of Availablefor-sale
Investments

P
=4,581

P
=6,766

P
=62

P
=–

(P
=9,634)

P
=1,775

–

–

758

–

(580)

178

4,581

6,766

820

–

(10,214)

1,953

6,030

7,983

–
4,581

–
6,766

77
897

1,044
1,044

243
(9,971)

1,364
3,317

29
6,059

1,393
9,376

–

–

–

–

–
–

–
–

–

–

–
P
=4,581

Capital
Stock
(Note 30)

At December 31, 2004,
as previously reported
Effect of changes due to the
change in accounting policies
(Note 4)
At December 31, 2004,
as restated
Effect of adoption of PAS 39
of subsidiaries and associates
(Note 4)
At January 1, 2005
Equity adjustment from
translation during the year
Adjustment for unrealized gain
on fair value adjustment of
available-for-sale investments
Total expense for the year
directly recognized in equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expense
for the year
Minority interest attributable to
deconsolidated subsidiary
At December 31, 2005

Minority
Interests

(664)

Total

(165)

13

–

(664)

(43)

(707)

(648)

–

(648)

–

(648)

(664)
–

(648)
–

–
732

(1,312)
732

(664)

(648)

732

(580)

–
P
=6,766

–
P
=233

–
P
=396

–
(P
=9,239)

–
P
=2,737

(477)
P
=5,946

(477)
P
=8,683

=4,581
P

=6,766
P

=53
P

=–
P

(P
=8,270)

=3,130
P

=6,651
P

=9,781
P

–
4,581

–
6,766

–
53

–
–

(739)
(9,009)

(739)
2,391

(162)
6,489

(901)
8,880

–
–

–
–

767
–

–
–

–
(1,205)

767
(1,205)

3
(625)

770
(1,830)

–
–

–
–

767
–

–
–

(1,205)
–

(438)
–

(622)
88

(1,060)
88

–
–
=4,581
P

–
–
=6,766
P

–
–
=820
P

–
–
=–
P

–
–
(P
=10,214)

287
(212)
=6,030
P

287
(212)
=7,983
P

–

–

Deficit

–
–
=1,953
P

(43)
407

364

(1,355)
1,139

(216)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in Millions)

Years Ended December 31
2004
(As restated Notes 3 and 4)
2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from continuing operations before income tax
Adjustments for:
Equity in net earnings of associates
Depreciation and amortization
Provisions for decline in value of:
Deposits
Investments and advances
Doubtful accounts
Retirement expense
Others
Interest and financing charges
Reversal of excess of accumulated losses
over acquisition cost
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
Loss on dilution of equity interest
Interest income
Curtailment gain
Mark-to-market gain
Gain on sale of investments
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Operating income before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net of effect
of deconsolidation of a subsidiary:
Increase in:
Trade and other receivables
Intangible assets
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and other current liabilities
Payments on:
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments
Income taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations
(Forward)
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P
=645

=746
P

(2,566)
2,513

(1,573)
1,593

2,063
256
160
108
17
2,682

–
309
164
132
1
2,244

(1,089)
(590)
492
(297)
(158)
(35)
(8)
(8)
4,185

(1,198)
(585)
(251)

–
269
–
(170)
–
–
–
3,715

(62)
(607)
(135)

753

205

(80)
(422)

(67)
(431)

2,402

2,618

Financial Statements

-2Years Ended December 31
2004
(As restated Notes 3 and 4)
2005
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in:
Other noncurrent assets
Due from related parties
Additions to property and equipment
Dividends and interest received from investees
Acquisition of investments and increase in advances
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of loans and long-term debt
Availments of loans and long-term debt
Interest and financing charges
Increase (decrease) in:
Other noncurrent liabilities
Minority interests
Due to related parties
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
of continuing operations
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(P
=293)
(21)
(645)
508
(246)
36
28
(633)

(P
=1,696)
67
(819)
254
(312)
61
27
(2,418)

(481)
746
(1,758)

(5,569)
6,221
(1,261)

(135)
–
–

(208)
107
60

(1,628)

(650)

141
28

(450)
–

NET CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

(2,355)

1,402

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(2,186)

952

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

4,527

3,575

P
=2,341

=4,527
P

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations
a. Corporate Information
Benpres Holdings Corporation (the Parent Company) is incorporated in the Philippines. The
Parent Company is a 56.22%-owned subsidiary of Lopez, Inc. (Lopez), also a Philippine
entity. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company”)
are mainly involved in investment holdings, broadcasting and entertainment and water
distribution (until July 20, 2005 - see Note 3). The Company’s associates are involved in
telecommunications, power generation and distribution, cable television, real estate
development and infrastructure.
The registered office address of the Parent Company is 4th Floor, Benpres Building, Meralco
Avenue, Pasig City.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 28, 2006.
b. Balance Sheet Management Plan
In June 2002, the Parent Company announced a plan called Balance Sheet Management Plan
(BSMP) to address all its financial obligations. The execution of the BSMP has a threepronged approach:
1) Debt reduction by getting the relevant subsidiaries to repay their debts as guaranteed by
the Parent Company;
2) Raising cash through orderly asset sales; and
3) Cost reduction and suspension of capital investment.
The BSMP is also designed to accommodate various scenarios depending on the success of
the Parent Company’s asset sale and debt reduction initiatives.
Long-term direct obligations of the Parent Company that are due for payment as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=9,963 million and P
=10,442 million, respectively
(see Note 16). In addition, by virtue of its guarantees and commitments, based on the BSMP,
the Parent Company may be liable for certain obligations that already fell due amounting to
approximately US$210 million (equivalent to P
=10,937 million as of December 31, 2005 and
11,706 million as of December 31, 2004) [see Notes 29(a) and (b)], excluding guarantees in
Maynilad Water Services, Inc. (Maynilad Water) (see Note 3). As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, consolidated current liabilities exceeded consolidated current assets by P
=22,121 million
and P
=27,467 million, respectively. Net loss attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 amounted to P
=1,205 million.
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Starting in 2002, the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its
long-term direct obligations and guarantees and commitments (see Notes 16, 17 and 29). As
proposed in the BSMP, all liabilities of the Parent Company were computed as of May 31,
2002.
As proposed in the BSMP, the Parent Company would make good faith semi-annual payments
on its direct and contingent obligations. The first payment was made on December 2, 2002.
Succeeding payments were made in June and December 2003, June and November 2004, and
May and November 2005.
On March 13, 2003, the Parent Company convened a Special Stockholders’ Meeting to obtain
stockholders’ consent to delegate to the BOD the authority to take all actions and matters
necessary and desirable for the restructuring of the Parent Company’s obligations under the
BSMP. The stockholders granted full authority to the BOD to negotiate with the creditors
without the need for prior stockholders’ approval.
In 2005, Ferrier Hodgson Corporate Advisory (WA) Pty Ltd. was appointed as financial
adviser to assist the Parent Company in addressing its long-term direct obligations, as well as
contingent obligations arising from outstanding guarantees and commitments. The creditors
formed the Benpres Creditors’ Committee to facilitate the overall process for the financial
restructuring of the Parent Company.
c. Bayan Telecommunications Holdings Corporation (Bayantel)
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Parent Company’s total investments, deposits in and
advances to Bayantel (before any valuation allowance and accumulated equity in net losses)
amounted to P
=11,681 million and P
=11,422 million, respectively (see Notes 10 and 12). It has
commitments to acquire approximately US$50.39 million Bayantel shares from certain
shareholders of Bayantel as discussed in Note 29(b). In addition, the Parent Company has
guaranteed the redemption of the convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel with a
redemption value of US$167 million based on original terms at redemption date as discussed
in Note 29(a). In relation to the guarantee, the Parent Company agreed to advance to each
holder, on behalf of Bayantel, such amount that the holder is entitled to receive from Bayantel
with respect to such dividend payments. These advances amounted to US$13.3 million
(equivalent to P
=706 million) as of December 31, 2005. Pursuant to this guarantee, the Parent
Company and Bayantel entered into an Indemnity Agreement where Bayantel agreed to
indemnify the Parent Company in the event that it is required to pay the guaranteed
obligations. Under the Indemnity Agreement, Bayantel shall indemnify and keep the Parent
Company indemnified by paying the guaranteed obligations actually paid within 45 days from
the date of such payment. Bayantel shall also indemnify the Parent Company for all costs,
liabilities, losses and expenses that it may incur by reason of, in connection with, or in relation
to the guarantee (see Note 17).
Advances made by the Parent Company effective November 2002 bear interest at LIBOR +
1% on the value of the convertible preferred shares as of May 30, 2003.
The convertible preferred shares were subject to mandatory redemption on January 8, 2003 at
US$50 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends and a final dividend that will provide
holders with an effective annual yield of 6.5% compounded annually from issue date to the
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date of redemption. The Parent Company, pursuant to the guarantee, has likewise guaranteed
full payment in full of the convertible preferred shares at its accreted value at maturity date.
On January 8, 2003, Bayantel and the Parent Company were unable to redeem the shares. The
Parent Company is presently negotiating with the preferred shareholders on the settlement of
the mandatory redemption price. As of December 31, 2005, no actual redemption has been
made by Bayantel and the Parent Company.
To address the debt problem, Bayantel’s main operating subsidiaries, Bayan
Telecommunications, Inc. (BTI) and Radio Communications of the Philippines, Inc. (RCPI),
requested their creditors for the restructuring of their bank loans (short-term and long-term)
and bonds payable. The Rehabilitation Plan (Plan) which was presented to the creditors and
reviewed and evaluated by a court appointed receiver (Receiver) was approved by the Pasig
Regional Trial Court (Court) in a decision dated June 28, 2004. The Court approval, however,
covers only claims against BTI.
BTI has suffered recurring losses resulting in accumulated deficit of P
=17,175 million and
=16,527 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This has affected
P
Bayantel’s ability to service its maturing obligations on a timely basis.
Pursuant to the Interim Rules of Procedure for Corporate Rehabilitation, the decision of the
Court approving the rehabilitation plan is immediately executory. Thus, on September 30,
2004, BTI commenced implementation and paid interest based on the decision of the Court
(Decision). On January 13, 2005, the Receiver filed his Implementing Term Sheet, which the
court approved on March 15, 2005.
Within the period to appeal, certain creditors, including the Bank of New York and majority
of the secured creditors, filed the required petitions for the review of the Decision approving
the Plan, which are currently pending with the Court of Appeals. The unsecured creditors are
seeking for the increase in the level of sustainable debt from US$325 million to
US$471 million to be repaid in 12 years. The secured creditors, on the other hand, are
appealing the pari-passu decision of the Court. The creditors, however, did not seek an order
restraining the implementation of the Decision. Consequently, BTI continues to implement
the rehabilitation plan as approved by the Court.
BTI continues to show potential growth despite a slight decline in revenue in 2005. With its
upgraded internet backbone network and core data service network, it has significantly
increased its revenue from data services because of its increasing capability to provide
broadband and seamless service to customers. Moreover, despite the increasing competition,
BTI continues to grow its local exchange carrier (LEC) subscriber base.
The ability of Bayantel and BTI to continue operating as a going concern depends largely on
the successful implementation of BTI’s Plan and BTI’s ability to sustain revenue growth. In
view of the above, the Parent Company has set up an allowance for decline in value of its
investments in and advances to Bayantel, including additional claims that may arise from its
guarantees and commitments amounting to P
=15,878 million and P
=15,698 million as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The portion of the guarantees and commitments
that has not been provided for amounted to approximately P
=1,669 million as of December 31,
2005 and 2004. Such amount represents management’s estimate of the Parent Company’s
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share in the remaining potential net worth of Bayantel. The enterprise value was based on the
terms of the Implementing Term Sheet.
Condensed consolidated financial information of Bayantel follow:
2005

2004*

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net capital deficiency
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Effect of restructuring of debts
Net income (loss)

P
=2,476
15,784
(19,003)
(16,592)
(P
=17,335)

P2,591
=
16,808
(9,161)
(17,622)
(P
=7,385)

P
=5,102
(5,642)
–
(P
=540)

P5,376
=
(9,807)
18,621
=14,190
P

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the
Company will continue operating as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue
operating as a going concern depends on the success of its BSMP. As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, the carrying value of the Parent Company’s investments and deposits in and advances to
Bayantel have been reduced to zero with the remaining possible claims against the Parent
Company credited to “Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments” account in the
consolidated balance sheets. All of the above foregoing factors indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which raise substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue operating
as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to
amounts and classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the Company is unable to
continue as a going concern.
2. Transfer of Media Interest
On April 17, 1997, the stockholders of the Parent Company approved the transfer of its ownership
interest in ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN) and Sky Vision Corporation
(SkyVision) to Lopez, a majority stockholder. On March 16, 1998, the National
Telecommunications Commission (NTC) authorized the transfer of the ABS-CBN and SkyVision
shares and on April 21, 1998, the transfer was approved by the creditors of the Parent Company,
thus, the release of the ABS-CBN and SkyVision shares from the negative pledge covenants
included in the terms of outstanding long-term commercial papers (LTCPs).
On April 24, 1998, the Parent Company transferred 553,457,304 shares of ABS-CBN at its market
value of P
=16.50 per share equivalent to P
=9,132 million and 162,463,400 shares of SkyVision at its
book value of P
=2.75 per share equivalent to P
=447 million in exchange for cash of P
=75 million and
Convertible and Nonconvertible Notes (Notes) of P
=9,504 million (Convertible Notes of
=5,504 million and Nonconvertible Notes of P
P
=4,000 million). The Notes are secured by a pledge
of the shares transferred and all subsequent shares distributed to Lopez by reason of its holdings of
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ABS-CBN and SkyVision shares. After the transfer, Lopez assumed all voting rights associated
with the shares.
The Notes shall be repaid on April 24, 2013 (Maturity Date). Lopez has the option to redeem the
Notes, at any time, subject to certain conditions provided for in the Agreement by both parties.
The Parent Company has the option to convert the Convertible Notes into 553,457,304 shares of
ABS-CBN and 162,463,400 shares of SkyVision (Conversion Quantity) at a conversion price of
=5,504 million until Maturity Date or redemption date, as the case may be. The conversion
P
quantity and price are subject to adjustments as provided for in the Agreement. The Notes may be
repaid in whole or in part on or before the Maturity Date. The Notes shall terminate on any earlier
date if the Convertible Notes shall have been properly converted and Lopez has satisfied its
obligations with respect to all such Convertible Notes. The Notes bear an annual interest of 1.5%,
subject to adjustments as agreed by both parties.
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the outstanding Notes amounted to P
=7,819 million. The
underlying shares totaled 446,800,022 ABS-CBN shares in 2005 and 2004 [including 568,415
Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) in 2005 and 2004] and 162,463,400 SkyVision shares in
2005 and 2004.
As of this date, the shares of stock in ABS-CBN and SkyVision are still under the name of Lopez.
Consequently, the power to vote those shares is with Lopez. The Parent Company has not
exercised its option to convert the ABS-CBN and SkyVision Notes into ABS-CBN and SkyVision
shares, respectively.
ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN is incorporated in the Philippines. Its core business is television and radio
broadcasting. Its subsidiaries and associates are involved in the following related businesses:
cable and direct-to-home television distribution and telecommunication services overseas, movie
production, audio recording and distribution, video/audio post production, and film distribution.
Other activities of the subsidiaries include merchandising, internet and mobile services and
publishing.
The convertibility feature of the ABS-CBN Notes qualifies as “potential voting rights” under
PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.” Under PAS 27, the existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by another entity, are considered when assessing whether an entity has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity. Consequently, for
consolidation purposes, ABS-CBN is considered a subsidiary of the Parent Company
(see Note 19). Accordingly, the issuance of the ABS-CBN Notes is eliminated for consolidation
purposes.
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Condensed consolidated financial information of ABS-CBN before intercompany eliminations
follow:
2004*

2005

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

P
=8,238
16,557
6,945
4,573
P
=13,277

P6,299
=
17,287
5,228
5,356
=13,002
P

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

P
=17,047
(16,753)
P
=294

P15,771
=
(15,010)
=761
P

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.

SkyVision
SkyVision is mainly involved in cable television services in Metro Manila and in certain
provincial areas in the Philippines.
The convertibility feature of the SkyVision Notes qualifies as “potential voting rights” under
PAS 28, “Investments in Associates.” Under PAS 28, the existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether an entity has significant influence. Consequently,
for consolidation purposes, SkyVision is considered an associate of the Parent Company.
Accordingly, the Parent Company’s investment in SkyVision is accounted for under the equity
method (see Note 10).
a. Consolidation of Central CATV, Inc. and Philippine Home Cable Holdings, Inc.
On July 18, 2001, ABS-CBN along with the Parent Company and Lopez (collectively, the
Benpres Group), signed a Master Consolidation Agreement (MCA) whereby they agreed with
the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company and Mediaquest Holdings, Inc.
(collectively, the PLDT Group) to consolidate their respective ownership or otherwise their
rights and interests in SkyVision and Unilink Communications Corporation (Unilink) under a
holding company to be established for that purpose. Beyond Cable Holdings, Inc. (Beyond)
was incorporated on December 7, 2001 as the holding company. SkyVision owns Central
CATV, Inc. (Central) and Pilipino Cable Corporation (PCC), which in turn operate cable
television systems in Metro Manila and key provincial areas under the tradenames
“Sky Cable” and “Sun Cable.” Unilink owns The Philippine Home Cable Holdings, Inc.
(Home), which operates cable television systems in Metro Manila and key provincial areas
under the trade name “Home Cable.”
Pursuant to the MCA, the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group shall, respectively, own 66.5%
and 33.5% of Beyond upon the transfer of their respective ownership and rights and interests
in SkyVision and Unilink into Beyond. Although the original agreement envisions the
transfers to be completed within six months from signing date, or by January 18, 2002, the
Benpres Group and the PLDT Group agreed to extend this Closing Date. On December 3,
2003, the Benpres and PLDT Groups, together with the PLDT Beneficial Trust Fund,
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executed an Amendment Agreement to the MCA whereby additional closing conditions were
incorporated into the MCA and wherein the Closing Date was extended until such time the
parties shall have completed all conditions precedent under the MCA and the Amendment
Agreement, including the share transfers described above. The MCA also provides for the
Benpres Group to sell 33.0% of Beyond to a strategic and/or financial investor. The sale of
shares in Beyond is part of the BSMP.
In a separate Memorandum of Agreement (Agreement) executed on April 8, 2004, the major
stockholders of Home and SkyVision have agreed to consolidate the ownership of their
respective shares in Home and SkyVision and to combine the operations, assets and liabilities
of Home and Central. Under the terms of the Agreement, the transfer of title to Home’s assets
and liabilities including attendant risk and rewards, shall be retroactive to January 1, 2004.
However, the Agreement allowed Home to continue its operations, and accordingly, full
complimentary use of the property and equipment transferred to Central, until December 31,
2004, after which Home will cease commercial operations. The valuation of the assets and
liabilities of Home as of December 31, 2003 is used as the basis for determining the
consideration for the transfer.
In relation to the consolidation discussed above, a competitor broadcasting company filed a
case before the NTC asking for NTC to declare as null and void the consolidation of the cable
operating companies. On November 16, 2004, the NTC denied the motion for cease and
desist order filed by the competitor broadcasting company. On November 30, 2004, the
competitor broadcasting company filed a motion for reconsideration which is still pending
with the NTC. It is the opinion of SkyVision’s legal counsels that the case filed by the
competitor broadcasting company is without legal basis.
b. Debt Restructuring
On October 17, 2003, the required majority of SkyVision and Central’s creditors and a
substantial majority of Home’s creditors have signed the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
covering the restructuring plan. The MOA provided the framework under which Central,
SkyVision, Home and the creditors mutually agreed to restructure the outstanding debt
obligations which became the basis for the Debt Restructuring Agreement, and consent to the
consolidation and merger of Central, SkyVision and Home.
On July 2, 2004, the Debt Restructuring Agreement between Central and its creditors has been
formalized in the Facility Agreement. Under the provisions of the Facility Agreement, the
outstanding principal on the existing secured and unsecured debt shall be paid by way of a
term loan payable in seven years inclusive of a two-year grace period, in 20 unequal
consecutive quarterly amortization immediately commencing from the end of the 9th quarter
from the value date.
In November 2005, SkyVision met with its creditors to request for an extension of the grace
period for another five (5) years, with principal amortization to start in 2011. The creditors
have already formed a steering committee to address the request of SkyVision. As of April 28,
2006, negotiations are still on-going.
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c. Convertible Notes Issued by SkyVision to ABS-CBN
On June 30, 2004, SkyVision and Central (“Issuer”) issued a convertible note (the “note”) to
ABS-CBN amounting to US$30 million equivalent to P
=1,577 million as of December 31,
2005. ABS-CBN’s long-term receivable from SkyVision, including accrued interest
receivable of P
=344 million and P
=113 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
is presented separately as “Long-term receivable from related parties” in the consolidated
balance sheets. The note is subject to interest of 13% compounded annually and will mature
on June 30, 2006. The principal and accrued interest as of maturity date shall be mandatorily
converted, based on the prevailing U.S. Dollar to Philippine Peso exchange rate on Maturity
Date, at a conversion price equivalent to a twenty percent (20%) discount of: (a) the market
value of the Shares, in the event of a public offering of the Issuer before Maturity Date; (b) the
valuation of the Shares by an independent third party appraiser that is a recognized banking
firm, securities underwriter or one of the big three international accounting firms or their
Philippine affiliate jointly appointed by the Benpres Group and PLDT Group pursuant to the
MCA dated July 18, 2001 as amended or supplemented.
Consequently, Benpres’ equity in SkyVision will be diluted upon conversion by ABS-CBN.
Prior to the issuance of the convertible note, SkyVision, Central and Home had trade and
advances payable to its shareholders in the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group, respectively.
Upon receipt of the proceeds of the note, SkyVision, Central and Home prioritized the
servicing of its outstanding payables to third-party suppliers and creditors, as well as new
payables due to Creative Programs, Inc. (CPI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ABS-CBN. As a
result, these companies did not service payables to its existing shareholders outstanding as of
June 30, 2004. Included in the amounts left unpaid were CPI’s trade receivables from Central
(through its subsidiary, CPI) of around P
=421 million. Subject to approval of its creditors,
ABS-CBN intends to include CPI’s receivables in the above equity conversion in SkyVision
under the same terms of the note.
d. Shareholders’ Agreement
On August 15, 1997, SkyVision entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement with Telemondial
Holdings, Inc. (THI) granting the latter certain rights and privileges as a minority shareholder
in PCC. THI owns 49% of PCC. Under the agreement, THI has the option, under certain
conditions, to require SkyVision to purchase THI’s shares in PCC. THI exercised this option
on October 2, 2001. As provided in the agreement, a process whereby the value of THI’s
shares in PCC will be established has been set in motion. As of April 28, 2006, this valuation
process has not been concluded.
3. Deconsolidation of Maynilad Water
Maynilad Water, formerly known as Benpres-Lyonnaise Waterworks, Inc., was incorporated on
January 22, 1997 as a joint venture between the Parent Company and Suez-Lyonnaise Des Eaux,
now known as Suez Environnement (Suez), primarily to bid for the operation of the privatized
system of waterworks and sewerage services of the Metropolitan Waterworks and Sewerage
System (MWSS) for Metropolitan Manila.
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On February 21, 1997, Maynilad Water entered into a Concession Agreement with MWSS, a
government-owned and controlled corporation organized and existing pursuant to Republic Act
No. 6234 (the Charter), as amended, with respect to the MWSS West Service Area. The
Concession Agreement sets forth the rights and obligations of Maynilad Water throughout the
concession period. The MWSS Regulatory Office (MWSS-RO or Regulatory Office) acts as the
regulatory body of the Concessionaires [Maynilad Water and the East Concessionaire - Manila
Water Company, Inc. (Manila Water)] under the Concession Agreement with MWSS.
Under the Concession Agreement, MWSS grants Maynilad Water (as contractor to perform
certain functions and as agent for the exercise of certain rights and powers under the Charter), the
sole right to manage, operate, repair, decommission and refurbish all fixed and movable assets
(except certain retained assets of MWSS) required to provide water and sewerage services in the
West Service Area for 25 years commencing on August 1, 1997 (the Commencement Date) to
May 6, 2022 (the Expiration Date) or the Early Termination Date as the case may be. Maynilad
Water officially took over the operations of the West Service Area on August 1, 1997.
Rehabilitation Plan
On August 6, 2004, Maynilad Water was ordered by the Rehabilitation Court to submit a revised
rehabilitation plan with the Rehabilitation Court based on a full draw of the performance bond
within a non-extendible period of thirty (30) days or until September 6, 2004 (Order). On
September 9, 2004, in support of the rehabilitation petition, Maynilad Water, its shareholders,
MWSS and the DOF set out their intents in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) relating to
the restructuring of: (i) the financial obligation of Maynilad Water with various banks; and (ii) the
unpaid Concession Fees of Maynilad Water under the Concession Agreement. As an integral part
of the said restructuring, the parties also set out in the MOU their intended mechanics by which
MWSS will acquire from certain creditors a transitional equity interest in Maynilad Water based
on the following interdependent key elements: (a) implementation of full draw on the
US$120 million Performance Bond of Maynilad Water; (b) limitation of debt-to-equity
conversions by MWSS; (c) avoidance of an early termination amount liability for the government;
(d) resumption of full payment to MWSS of concession fees; (e) preservation of the national
privatization policy; (f) assurance that there will be no disruption of essential water services in the
West Service Area; (g) providing a transitional government take-over from certain creditors; (h) a
viable repayment plan for all creditors; (i) deficit reduction and write-off of shareholders’
receivables from Maynilad Water; and (j) the corresponding implementation of tariff increase as
already approved by MWSS on October 2002, with no new application for additional tariff
increases.
As a result of the MOU, a revised rehabilitation plan (September 2004 Rehabilitation Plan) was
submitted by Maynilad Water to the Rehabilitation Court and at the same time, Maynilad Water
withdrew all previous rehabilitation plans that it had submitted. On September 29, 2004, the
Rehabilitation Court ruled that there is merit to the Petition for Rehabilitation and referred the
Petition, Annexes and the September 2004 Rehabilitation Receiver for evaluation and the latter to
report not later than November 29, 2004. In a separate Order, the Rehabilitation Court extended
the 180-day period up to February 28, 2005.
On December 17, 2004, MWSS sent a notice to Maynilad Water to draw on the US$120 million
SBLC and a new tariff of P
=30.19 per cubic meter (average all-in) was published. Thereafter, on
December 20, 2004, the Rehabilitation Receiver submitted its “Report and Recommendation” to
the Rehabilitation Court, recommending approval of the September 2004 Rehabilitation Plan

42

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

provided that Maynilad Water, its shareholders, bank creditors, and MWSS, execute the
implementing agreements on December 31, 2004. Otherwise, Maynilad Water should be ordered
to submit a revised rehabilitation plan.
On January 1, 2005, Maynilad Water started implementing the rebased tariff rate of P
=30.19 per
cubic meter. On January 14, 2005, MWSS sent a demand for the full US$120 million SBLC to
Citicorp International Ltd. by way of a “Written Certification.” In the meantime, Maynilad Water
and its shareholders, the bank creditors and MWSS, failed to execute the implementing
agreements that would give effect to the September 2004 Rehabilitation Plan. On January 20,
2005, MWSS received the entire proceeds of the US$120 million Performance Bond.
On January 31, 2005, a hearing was conducted by the Rehabilitation Court regarding the
Rehabilitation Receiver’s Report and Recommendation. Maynilad Water was ordered to submit a
“Modified Rehabilitation Plan” on February 28, 2005. Maynilad Water failed to submit the said
Modified Rehabilitation Plan on February 28, 2005. Accordingly, the Rehabilitation Court gave
Maynilad Water a non-extendible deadline of April 29, 2005 to submit the Modified
Rehabilitation Plan.
Debt Capital and Restructuring Agreement (DCRA)
On April 29, 2005, Maynilad Water, its shareholders, bank creditors, and MWSS executed the
DCRA to set out the terms and conditions of their understanding and to govern their respective
rights and obligations in connection with the restructuring of the debt and capital of Maynilad
Water. The DCRA provides, among others, the capital restructuring and restructuring of debt and
concession fees of Maynilad Water. The DCRA shall take effect upon the satisfaction of the
Conditions Precedent set forth in the DCRA. Conditions precedent include among others, the
Court Approval. The Rehabilitation Court approved the DCRA on June 1, 2005. The Effective
Date of the DCRA wherein all the conditions precedent has been satisfied occurred on July 20,
2005.
The capital restructuring provisions mainly involve write-off of shareholder advances, conversion
of advances into equity and dilution of the shares of the Parent Company’s equity interest in
Maynilad Water, representing fifty-nine percent (59%) of the equity interest in Maynilad Water
(BHC Shares). Under Section 24 of the DCRA, MWSS is given the right, subject to the prior
approval of Maynilad Water’s bank lenders and the Suez Group, to assign its right and obligation
to subscribe to 83.97% of the shares of Maynilad Water or to assign any portion or all of the said
shares (in the event the subscription has been exercised), provided that the assignee of the MWSS
shall assume all the obligations and undertakings of MWSS under the DCRA in connection with,
relating to, or arising from, such right. On September 8, 2005, the MWSS Board of Trustees
resolved that MWSS shall assign its right and obligation to subscribe to shares in Maynilad Water
by way of public bidding (MWSS BOT Resolution No. 2005-203). At present, Maynilad Water,
its shareholders, its creditors and MWSS are in the process of establishing and determining the
procedure for the public bidding. Since MWSS did not exercise its right to subscribe to the shares
of Maynilad Water and instead opted to assign said right, the capital restructuring provisions in the
DCRA cannot be fully implemented until the assignee subscribes to the shares of Maynilad Water
in substitution of MWSS.
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The creditors of Maynilad Water has completely released the Parent Company from all its
obligations as guarantor of the US$120 million Standby Letter of Credit Facility and the
US$100 million term loan facility of Maynilad Water. A Deed of Release in relation to the
US$120 million Standby Letter of Credit Facility Agreement and a Deed of Release in relation to
US$100 million loan agreement were both executed as of April 29, 2005.
Based on the stock and transfer book of Maynilad Water, the Parent Company is still the
registered owner of the BHC Shares. However, the said stock certificates covering the BHC
Shares have already been endorsed and delivered to the Rehabilitation Receiver pursuant to the
DCRA. In further compliance with the terms of the DCRA, the Parent Company delivered to the
Rehabilitation Receiver, an irrevocable proxy dated July 21, 2005 (Proxy) appointing MWSS or
any of MWSS’ authorized representatives as its proxy to attend, in the Parent Company’s name,
place and stead, all meetings of Maynilad Water, and to vote all of the BHC Shares, specifically
for the purpose of carrying out, or ensuring the completion of the capital restructuring of Maynilad
Water as set out in the DCRA. The terms of the Proxy state that it is coupled with an interest and
may not be revoked until such time as the capital restructuring of Maynilad Water is completed.
On January 9, 2006, MWSS called a special meeting of the stockholders of Maynilad Water where
MWSS exercised the Proxy and elected its representative directors to the Board of Directors of
Maynilad Water in replacement of the Parent Company’s directors. An organizational meeting of
the new Board of Directors of Maynilad Water was subsequently held on January 12, 2006 to elect
the new officers of Maynilad Water.
Accordingly, the Parent Company has lost its power to govern the financial and operating policies
of Maynilad Water as provided for in PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.”
In view of the above, the Parent Company deconsolidated Maynilad Water effective July 20, 2005.
The reversal of the excess of the Company’s accumulated equity in losses over its acquisition cost
in Maynilad, amounting to P
=1,089 million, is shown separately in the 2005 consolidated statement
of income.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Maynilad Water as of July 20, 2005 and
December 31, 2004 are as follows:
July 20,
2005
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net capital deficiency
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P
=6,526
17,176
(22,273)
(3,527)
(P
=2,098)

December 31,
2004
(In Millions)

P4,350
=
15,756
(19,409)
(3,479)
(P
=2,782)
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The results of operations of Maynilad Water for the period January 1 to July 20, 2005 and the year
ended December 31, 2004 are presented below: [shown separately in the statements of income as
“Income (loss) from discontinued operations”]
2005
(January to
July 20,
2005)
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)

P
=4,301
(3,616)
P
=685

2004
(One year)

(In Millions)

P3,905
=
(6,203)
(P
=2,298)

Prior year consolidated statement of income was accordingly restated.
The net cash flows incurred by Maynilad Water are as follows:
2005
(January to
July 20,
2005)
Operating
Investing
Financing
Net cash inflow (outflow)

(P
=3,252)
(2,526)
4,771
(P
=1,007)

2004
(One year)

(In Millions)

P2,410
=
(1,139)
131
=1,402
P

Pending Cases on Maynilad Water’s Corporate Rehabilitation Proceedings
Two petitions relating to the corporate rehabilitation proceedings of Maynilad Water have been
filed, consolidated and are currently pending before the Second Division of the Supreme court
(SC).
The first petition involves a Petition for Certiorari and Mandamus instituted by certain so called
public interest groups, three members of congress identified with these groups and some
individuals who claim to be Maynilad Water consumers in the West Service Area against the
presiding judge of the Rehabilitation Court, seeking to nullify the resolution issued by the
Rehabilitation Court barring the said petitioners from further participating in the rehabilitation
proceedings and refusing to declare them as interested parties, and praying for the issuance of an
order allowing them to take part in the case.
The second petition involves a Petition for Certiorari under Rule 65 of the Rules of Court filed by
the same petitioners against the same respondents but including MWSS, the Parent Company,
Suez SA, Suez Environment, Lyonnaise Asia Water (Holdings) Pte. Ltd., Ondeo Services
(Philippines) Inc., and certain lenders and creditor banks who are signatories to the DCRA,
questioning the approval of Maynilad Water’s 2005 Rehabilitation Plan and the DCRA by the
Rehabilitation Court, on the ground that the same are allegedly “void, unlawful and contrary to
public policy”. In support of their prayer for the issuance of a preliminary injunction, the
petitioners reiterate their position that the implementation of the Rehabilitation Plan and the
DCRA allows Maynilad Water to avoid its obligations under the Concession Agreement, to the
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detriment of the government and the consuming public. They also claim that such implementation
will result in the dissipation of public funds. On October 17, 2005, Maynilad Water filed its
Comment to this petition. The Parent Company filed a Special Appearance with Manifestation on
November 17, 2005.
As of April 28, 2006, no resolution has yet been issued by the SC in respect of the abovementioned consolidated cases.
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines as set forth in the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRS, include standards named PFRSs and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PASs), including interpretations issued by the Philippine Accounting Standards
Council. These are the Company’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in compliance
with PFRSs.
The Company prepared its consolidated financial statements until December 31, 2004 in
compliance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards and Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards /International Accounting Standards.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale investments that have been measured at fair
value.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest million (P
=000,000)
except when otherwise indicated.
Explanation of Transition to PFRS
As stated above, these are the Company’s first consolidated financial statements in accordance
with PFRS. The Company applied PFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards,” in preparing these financial statements, with January 1, 2004 as the date of
transition.
The transition to PFRSs resulted in certain changes to the Company’s previous accounting policies
(referred to in the following tables and explanations as “Previous GAAP”). The comparative
figures for the 2004 consolidated financial statements were restated to reflect the changes in
policies except those relating to financial instruments. The Company availed of the exemption
under PFRS 1 and applied PAS 32 and 39, the standards on financial instruments, from January 1,
2005. The cumulative effect of adopting these standards are credited to January 1, 2005 retained
earnings. Required disclosures are included in the consolidated financial statements, as
applicable.
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The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following new standards effective for financial years beginning on or after
January 1, 2005:








PAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment”;
PAS 19, “Employee Benefits”;
PAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”;
PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”;
PFRS 3, “Business Combinations,” PAS 36 (revised), “Impairment of Assets” and PAS 38 ,
“Intangible Assets”;
PAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”; and
PAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.”

An explanation of the effects of the transition to PFRSs is set forth in the following tables and
notes.
Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity at January 1, 2004, the date of
transition to PFRS, and December 31, 2004, the end of the latest period presented using Previous
GAAP follows:

Notes

January 1, 2004
Effect of
transition
Previous
GAAP
to PFRS

PFRS

December 31, 2004
Effect of
transition
Previous
GAAP
to PFRS

PFRS

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables
(see Note 32)
Program rights - current (see Note 32)
Other current assets (see Note 32)
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Investments and advances in associates
Property and equipment
Long-term receivables from related
parties (see Note 32)
Noncurrent program rights and other
intangible assets (see Note 32)
Other noncurrent assets - net
(see Note 32)
Total Noncurrent Assets

=3,575
P
–

=–
P
–

=3,575
P
–

=4,527
P
697

=–
P
–

=4,527
P
697

4,484
881
999
9,939

–
–
–
–

4,484
881
999
9,939

4,312
783
1,240
11,559

–
–
–
–

4,312
783
1,240
11,559

14,251
15,210

15,969
15,098

358
–

16,327
15,098

14,766
15,210

b, c

(515)
–

336

–

336

2,191

–

2,191

936

–

936

1,548

–

1,548

17,495
48,743

(78)
(593)

17,417
48,150

17,598
52,404

=58,682
P

(P
=593)

=58,089
P

=63,963
P

=348
P

=64,311
P

=19,682
P
6,701

=–
P
436

=19,682
P
7,137

=18,792
P
9,320

=–
P
473

=18,792
P
9,793

10,358
36,741

–
436

10,358
37,177

10,441
38,553

–
473

10,441
39,026

(10)
348

17,588
52,752

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables (see Note 32)
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments (Notes 1 and 17)
Total Current Liabilities

b
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Notes
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings - net of current portion
Payable to MWSS
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Capital stock
Capital paid in excess of par value
Share in equity adjustment from
translation
Deficit
Total Stockholders’ Equity
attributable to Equity holders
of the Parent Company
Minority Interests
Total Stockholders’ Equity

b

January 1, 2004
Effect of
transition
Previous
to PFRS
GAAP

3,466
6,870
1,824
12,160
4,581
6,766

c, d

53
(8,270)
3,130
6,651
9,781
=58,682
P

PFRS

–
–
(128)
(128)

3,466
6,870
1,696
12,032

5,174
9,295
2,971
17,440

4,581
6,766

4,581
6,766

53
(9,009)

62
(9,634)

–
–
–
(739)
(739)
(162)
(901)
(P
=593)

December 31, 2004
Effect of
transition
Previous
to PFRS
GAAP

2,391
6,489
8,880
=58,089
P

1,775
6,195
7,970
=63,963
P

–
–
(138)
(138)

PFRS

5,174
9,295
2,833
17,302

–
–

4,581
6,766

758
(580)

820
(10,214)

178
(165)
338
=348
P

1,953
6,030
7,983
=64,311
P

Reconciliation of Equity at January 1 and December 31, 2004 and Net Loss for 2004
Adoption of the above standards involved changes in accounting policies and the Company has
accordingly restated its comparative consolidated financial statements retroactively in accordance
with the transitional rules detailed in these standards. Required disclosures are included in the
consolidated financial statements, as applicable.
Reconciliation of the effects of these new standards is presented below:

As previously reported
Effect of changes in accounting policies:
PAS 19
PAS 36
PFRS 3
Restatement of investment
in associates
Restatement of share in equity from
translation
As restated
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Increase (Decrease)
Net Loss
Attributable to
Equity Holders
of the Parent
Company
Stockholders’ Equity
January 1, December 31,
December 31,
2004
2004
2004
=1,775
P
=3,130
P
=1,364
P
(191)
(40)
110

(174)
(51)
159

17
(11)
49

(459)

(673)

(214)

758
=1,953
P

–
=2,391
P

–
=1,205
P

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation of income and expenses for 2004 follows:

Notes

Previous
GAAP

Effect of
Transition to
PFRS

PFRS

(In Millions)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Expenses (income)
Income before income tax
Provision for income tax
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Parent
Company
Minority Interests

b, c
b, c
d

=15,772
P
15,173
599
287
312
(2,298)
(P
=1,986)

=–
P
(147)
(147)
(9)
(156)
–
(P
=156)

=15,772
P
15,026
746
278
468
(2,298)
(P
=1,830)

(P
=1,364)
(622)

=159
P
(3)

(P
=1,205)
(625)

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic Loss Per Share (see Note 28)

=0.2977
P

=0.2630
P

Notes to the Reconciliation of Equity at January 1 and December 31, 2004
and Net Income for 2004:
a. PAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment”
PAS 16 provides additional guidance and clarification on recognition and measurement of
items of property, plant and equipment. It also provides that each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall
be depreciated separately. This resulted in the componentization of ABS-CBN’s building and
the change in the estimated useful life of each significant item in the building account. The
adjustment was taken in the consolidated financial statements prospectively and resulted in the
increase in depreciation expense by P
=66 million in 2005.
b. PAS 19, “Employee Benefits”
Adoption of PAS 19 resulted in additional disclosures that provide information about the
trends in the assets and liabilities in the defined benefit plans and the assumptions underlying
the components of the defined benefit cost. In addition, the Company recognized other postemployment benefits which were not recognized in prior years. The Company also availed of
the voluntary exemption under PFRS 1 and accordingly, all actuarial gains or losses were
recognized up to January 1, 2004. This change in accounting policy has resulted in additional
disclosures being included for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
Based on the actuarial valuation computed under PAS 19, ABS-CBN has a transitional
liability amounting to P
=429.6 million and the Parent Company has a transitional asset of
=4.9 million as of January 1, 2004. The recognition of ABS-CBN’s transitional liability and
P
the Parent Company’s transitional asset was made on a one-time retroactive basis. Adoption
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of this standard increased deficit as of January 1, 2004 by P
=174 million. Net loss in 2004
increased by P
=17 million.
c. PFRS 3, “Business Combinations,” PAS 36, “Impairment of Assets,” and PAS 38, “Intangible
Assets”
PFRS 3 requires the cessation of the amortization of goodwill and a requirement for an annual
test for goodwill impairment. Any resulting negative goodwill after performing reassessment
will be credited to income. Moreover, pooling of interests in accounting for business
combination will no longer be permitted. The Company applied PFRS 3 since January 1,
2004. Adoption of PFRS 3 resulted in the Company ceasing annual goodwill amortization
and commencing testing for impairment annually (unless an event occurs during the year
which requires the goodwill to be tested more frequently) from January 1, 2004. Under the
previous GAAP, goodwill was amortized over ten to twenty years. The Company charged to
deficit on January 1, 2004 the carrying amount of the accumulated amortization and
recognized an impairment loss on its goodwill and credited the reversal of negative goodwill.
Adoption of the standards reduced deficit by P
=159 million as of January 1, 2004. Net loss in
2004 increased by P
=49 million.
Under previous GAAP, intangible assets were considered to have a finite useful life with a
rebuttable presumption that life would not exceed ten years from the date when the asset was
available for use. Under PFRS, some of the intangible assets are regarded to have an
indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all the relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for
the Company. Accordingly, cable channels of Creative Programs, Inc (CPI) is considered to
have an indefinite life and the useful life of the production and distribution business in the
Middle East operations of ABS-CBN is changed from 10 to 25 years. Due to the change in
the estimated useful life of the cable channels of CPI (from finite to indefinite), the carrying
value of the cable channels as of January 1, 2005 is no longer amortized. Instead, it was tested
for impairment. As of December 31, 2005, there was no impairment identified. On the other
hand, the change in estimated useful life of the production and distribution business in the
Middle East operations resulted in an adjustment of the consolidated financial statements
prospectively and resulted in a decrease in amortization expense by P
=15 million in 2005.
d. PAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”
Under the previous GAAP, unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses of Maynilad Water,
which will be recovered through customers’ billings, does not pass through the consolidated
statements of income but are deferred under the “Deferred FCDA and STM” account in the
consolidated balance sheets. Under PAS 21, these unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses
are presented as part of the foreign exchange gains or losses in the consolidated statements of
income. Deferred FCDA and STM account is then set up representing deferred foreign
exchange gains or losses that are billable to the customers, with a credit (debit) to FCDA
revenues. Adoption of PAS 21 only resulted in a change in the presentation of these
unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses in the statements of Maynilad Water of income.
It did not have any effect on deficit and net income (loss).
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e. PAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”
PAS 32 covers the disclosure and presentation of all financial instruments. The standard
requires more comprehensive disclosures about a company’s financial instruments, whether
recognized or unrecognized in the financial statements. New disclosure requirements include
terms and conditions of financial instruments used, types of risks associated with both
recognized and unrecognized financial instruments (market risk, price risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, and cash flow risk), fair value information of both recognized and unrecognized
financial assets and financial liabilities, and financial risk management policies and
objectives. Adoption of the standard resulted in additional disclosures in the notes to
consolidated financial statements.
The standard also requires financial instruments to be classified as liabilities or equity in
accordance with their substance and not their legal form. New disclosure requirements were
included as a result of the adoption of the new standard.
f.

PAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
PAS 39 establishes the accounting and reporting standards for recognizing and measuring a
company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard requires a financial asset or
financial liability to be recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, a
company should continue to measure financial assets at their fair values, except for loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments, which are to be measured at cost or amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
cost or amortized cost, except for liabilities classified as “at fair value through profit and loss”
and derivatives which are measured at fair value. PAS 39 requires the use of discounted cash
flow techniques in determining impairment loss when objective evidence of impairment exists
for financial assets that are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
PAS 39 also covers the accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments. The
standard has expanded the definition of a derivative instrument to include derivatives
(derivative-like provisions) embedded in non-derivative contracts. Under the standard, every
derivative instrument is recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or a liability measured
at its fair value. Derivatives that are not designated and do not qualify as hedges are adjusted
to fair value through income. If the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset
against the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through
earnings, or recognized in equity until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. A company
must formally document, designate and assess the hedge effectiveness of derivative
transactions that receive hedge accounting treatment.
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Adoption of this Standard has increased (decreased) the following accounts of the Company at
January 1, 2005:
Notes

Increase
(Decrease)
(In Millions)

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Other noncurrent assets
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings -net of current portion
Derivative assets
Share in unrealized gain on fair value adjustments of
available-for-sale investments
Trade and other receivables
Obligations for program rights
Deferred tax assets
Program rights and other intangibles
Trade and other payables
Deficit

a
a
b

P243
=
(255)
(250)
126

b
c
d
b
d

117
(60)
(17)
15
(23)
(.5)
47

a. Implementation of the effective interest method resulted in decrease of P
=5 million in
January 1, 2005 retained earnings; unamortized debt issued costs were reclassified from
other noncurrent assets and presented net from long-term debt.
b. ABS-CBN recognized the fair value of its derivatives (freestanding and embedded) as of
January 1, 2005. The fair value of freestanding derivatives which qualified for hedge
accounting under previous GAAP was reported in the share in unrealized gain from fair
value of available-for-sale investments. Embedded derivatives were bifurcated from
program rights and license agreements.
c. ABS-CBN tested its trade and other receivable for impairment on January 1, 2005
resulting in additional impairment losses.
d. ABS-CBN discounted its long-term noninterest-bearing payables to comply with
PAS 39’s requirement to record all financial instruments at fair value upon initial
recognition. Subsequently, these were carried at amortized costs.
The Company’s share in the PAS 39 adjustments of its subsidiaries and associates amounted
to P
=243 million as of January 1, 2005. The Company made use of the exemption provided by
PFRS 1. As allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the effect of
adopting PAS 39 did not result in a restatement of prior period’s consolidated financial
statements. The cumulative effect of adopting this standard was credited to the January 1,
2005 equity.
g. PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
PAS 27 provides that potential voting rights be considered in determining a subsidiary.
Accordingly, ABS-CBN is considered a subsidiary (see Note 2). In prior years, ABS-CBN is
consolidated only in the pro-forma consolidated financial statements. Due to the adoption of
PAS 27, pro-forma consolidated financial statement is no longer presented.
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Effect on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for 2004
There are no material differences between the statement of cash flows prepared under PFRS and
the statement of cash flows presented under previous GAAP.
Other Adopted PFRSs
The Company has also adopted the following under PFRSs. Comparative presentation and
disclosures have been amended as required by the standards. Adoption of these standards has no
effect on equity at January 1 and December 31, 2004.






PAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”;
PAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”;
PAS 10, “Events After the Balance Sheet Date”;
PAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”; and
PAS 28, “Investments in Associates.”

Standards Not Yet Effective
The Company did not early adopt the following standards and amendments that have been
approved but are not yet effective:
 Amendments to PAS 19, “Employee Benefits – Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures” — The revised disclosures from the amendments will be included in the
Company’s financial statements when the amendments are adopted in 2006.
 PFRS 6, “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources” — This standard will take
effect in 2006 and does not apply to the activities of the Company.
 PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments - Disclosures” — The revised disclosures on financial
instruments provided by this standard will be included in the Company’s financial statements
when the standard is adopted in 2007.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries as of December 31 of each year (see Notes 2 and 19). The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company, using
consistent accounting policies.
All intra-company balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting
from intra-company transactions that are recognized in assets, are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the
results for the part of the reporting year during which the Parent Company has control.
The 2005 consolidated statements of income and cash flows include the results of operations and
cash flows of Maynilad Water for the period January 1 to July 20, 2005, the date the Parent
Company effectively lost control over Maynilad Water (see Note 3).
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Minority Interest
Minority interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries, not held by
the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of income and within
equity in the consolidated balance sheets, separately from the equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Parent Company. The losses applicable to minority may exceed the minority’s
investment in the subsidiary. Any losses applicable to a minority shareholder in a consolidated
subsidiary in excess of the minority shareholder’s equity in the subsidiary are charged against the
minority interest to the extent that the minority shareholder has binding obligation to, and are able
to, make good the losses.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 days’ terms, are recognized and carried at original
invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Provision is made when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are written
off when identified.
Inventories
Inventories included under “Other current assets - net” account in the consolidated balance sheets
are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
method. Net realizable value of inventories that are for sale is the selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the cost of marketing and distribution. Net realizable value of inventories
not held for sale is the current replacement cost. Unrealizable inventories are written off.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are carried at cost (including capitalized interest), excluding
day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment
when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment in value. Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line method over
the property and equipment’s useful lives.
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each financial year-end.
When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
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Construction in progress represents equipment under installation and building under construction
and is stated at cost which includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use. In 2004, rehabilitation work in progress represents costs incurred from contracts
entered into by Maynilad Water for preliminary survey and investigation services, technical
services and capital works to facilitate the implementation of the Concession. Rehabilitation work
in progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial
year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statements of income in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with finite life is reviewed annually to determine whether finite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from finite to
indefinite is made on a prospective basis.
A summary of the policies applied to ABS-CBN’s acquired intangible assets is as follows:
Program rights

Cable channels CPI.

Production and Distribution
Business - Middle East operations

Useful lives

Finite (license term
or economic life
whichever is
shorter)

Indefinite (2004:
Finite, 20 years)

Finite - 25 years (2004: Finite,
10 years)

Method used

Amortized on the
basis of program
usage.

No amortization
(2004: 10 years)

Amortized over the period of
25 years (2004: Amortized over
the period of 10 years)
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Program rights

Cable channels CPI.

Production and Distribution
Business - Middle East operations

To the extent that a
Impairment
testing/recoverable given future
expected benefit
amount testing
period is shorter
than the initial
estimates, ABSCBN writes off the
purchase price or
the license fee
sooner than
anticipated.

Annually and
more frequently
when an
indication of
impairment exists

The amortization method is
reviewed at each financial yearend

Current and
noncurrent portion

Not applicable

Not applicable

Based on the
estimated year of
usage

In prior years, cable channels of CPI and production and distribution business of the Middle East
were considered to have a finite useful life with a rebuttable presumption that life would not
exceed ten years from the date when the asset was available for use.
The cable channels acquired by CPI have no definite life. Based on ABS-CBN’s analysis of all
the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which this business is expected
to generate net cash inflows for ABS-CBN. The change in the useful life assessment from finite
to indefinite is accounted for prospectively.
The production and distribution business acquired for the Middle East operations has a definite
life of 25 years based on the terms of ABS-CBN’s agreement with Arab Digital Distribution
(ADD). Based on ABS-CBN’s analysis of all the relevant factors, it is determined that the
estimated useful life of such business should be 25 years. The change in the useful life from
10 years to 25 years is accounted for prospectively.
Investments in Associates
The Company’s investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and
which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheets
at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate.
Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
amortized. After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is
necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the Company’s net
investment in the associate. The consolidated statements of income reflect the share in the results
of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of
the associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when
applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.
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The reporting dates of the associate and the Company are identical and the associates’ accounting
policies conform to those used by the Company for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.
Equity adjustment from translation represents the Company’s share in the adjustments of an
associate resulting from the translation into Philippine pesos of the foreign currency financial
statements of an associate’s investee.
Starting in 2001, the Parent Company discontinued the recognition of its 49% share in the losses
of Bayantel. The accumulated losses in Bayantel reduced the carrying value of the Parent
Company’s investment in Bayantel to zero. Additional claims against the Parent Company arising
from its guarantees and commitments have been provided for and credited to “Estimated liabilities
from guarantees and commitments” account in the consolidated financial statements. If Bayantel
subsequently reports profits, the Parent Company will resume including its share of these profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of net losses not recognized.
In July 2003, Verizon, a 19% shareholder of Bayantel sold all of its equity interest in Bayantel to
the Parent Company. As a result, the Parent Company’s equity ownership in Bayantel increased
from 49% to 68%. Lopez retained its direct equity ownership in Bayantel of 17%. On the same
date, the Parent Company executed a Voting Trust Agreement with Lopez where the Parent
Company assigned the voting rights of the additional 19% equity in Bayantel to Lopez while the
Parent Company still has outstanding liabilities to Lopez. As a result, Lopez retained control of
Bayantel and continues to consolidate Bayantel in its consolidated financial statements.
Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.
Concession Assets
Maynilad Water accounts for the concession assets (presented as “Other Noncurrent Assets Concession Assets” in the 2004 consolidated balance sheet) covered in the concession agreement
with MWSS as an operating lease. Concession assets of Maynilad Water represent the concession
and commencement fees paid in obtaining the exclusive right to supply water and sewerage
services to the West Service Area. Concession fee payments denominated in foreign currencies
are translated to Philippine peso using the bid rate. The excess of actual concession fee payments
over the amount of concession fees translated using the bid rate of P
=26.30 (for concession fees up
to December 31, 2004) and P
=51.86 (for concession fees starting January 1, 2005) will be
recovered through billings to customers as approved by the MWSS Board of Trustees (BOT)
under Amendment No. 1 of the Concession Agreement (see accounting policy on foreign currency
translation). Concession assets are amortized on the basis of the total nominal value of estimated
concession fee payments over the projected billable water revenue during the concession period
from the start of commercial operations.
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Tax Credits
Tax credits from government airtime sales availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362 are
recognized in the books upon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements. This
is included under the “Other noncurrent assets - net” account in the consolidated balance sheets.
Deferred Charges
Gain or loss on sale of decoders which has no stand alone value without the subscription revenues
are aggregated and recognized ratably over the longer of subscription contract term or the
estimated customer service life. These are presented as part of “Other noncurrent assets - net”
account in the consolidated balance sheets. As explained in Note 29, ABS-CBN and ABS-CBN
International entered into an agreement with DirecTV, Inc. (DirecTV) whereby direct-to-home
(DTH) subscribers of ABS-CBN International are expected to migrate to DirecTV in 2006. ABSCBN International will continue to service its subscribers until February 28, 2006. Accordingly,
the deferred charges related to the DTH subscribers of ABS-CBN International are written off as
of December 31, 2005, since management is of the opinion that the corresponding future benefits
from these assets, if any, are not material.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations
are recognized in the statements of income in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount,
less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
As an exception, an impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature
that is not expected to recur and subsequent external events have occurred that reverse the effect
of that event.
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Effective January 1, 2005)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial
instruments which are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated balance sheets
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity net of any
related income tax benefits. Financial instruments are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset and intention to settle either on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are further classified into the following categories:
financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, heldto-maturity, available-for-sale financial assets and other financial liabilities. The Company
determines the classification at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date, where appropriate.
a. Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or upon initial recognition, it is
designated by management as at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are also
categorized as held at fair value through profit or loss, except those derivatives designated and
considered as effective hedging instruments. Assets or liabilities classified under this category
are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of such
assets and liabilities are accounted for immediately in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company’s derivative instruments (including embedded derivatives) that are not
accounted for as accounting hedges are classified under this category.
b. Held-to-Maturity Investments
Quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in
this classification. Other long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such
as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount
initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognized amount
and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized cost, gains
and losses are recognized in income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as
well as through the amortization process.
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The Company has no held-to-maturity investments in 2005.
c. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
This category includes the Company’s trade, intercompany and other receivables.
d. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses
being recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognized or
until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company’s available-for-sale investments include investments in ordinary common
shares.
The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets
is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the balance
sheet date. For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is
substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging
Effective January 1, 2005. The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as interest
rate swaps and cross currency swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and foreign
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to net profit or loss for the year.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
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fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset
or liability;



cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a forecast transaction; or



hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.
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At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:
Fair Value Hedges. Fair value hedges are hedges of the Company’s exposure to changes in the
fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment, or an identified
portion of such an asset, liability or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect profit or loss. For fair value hedges, the carrying amount of the hedged item is
adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being hedged, the derivative is remeasured at
fair value and gains and losses from both are taken to profit or loss.
The Company has no derivatives that are designated or accounted for as fair value hedges in 2005.
Cash Flow Hedges. Cash flow hedges are hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognized directly in equity, while the ineffective portion is recognized in
profit or loss.
Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the consolidated statements of income when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a
non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in equity
are transferred to profit or loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts
previously recognized in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If the
related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is taken to profit or loss.
In October 2005, ABS-CBN designated its outstanding interest rates and cross currency swaps as
cash flow hedges.
Hedges of a Net Investment. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge
of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way
similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge are recognized directly in equity while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognized in profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the
cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized directly in equity is transferred to profit
or loss.
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The Company has no hedges of a net investment in 2005.
Prior to January 1, 2005
ABS-CBN enters into long-term foreign currency swap agreements to manage its foreign currency
exposures relating to certain long-term foreign currency-denominated loans. Translation gains or
losses on foreign currency swaps entered into as hedges are computed by multiplying the swap
notional amounts by the difference between the spot exchange rate prevailing on balance sheet
date and the spot exchange rate on the contract inception date (or the last reporting date). The
resulting translation gains or losses are offset against the translation losses or gains on the
underlying foreign currency-denominated liabilities.
ABS-CBN also enters into interest rates swaps to manage its interest rate exposures on underlying
floating-rate loans. Swap costs accruing on foreign currency swaps and interest rate swaps that
are currently due to or from the swap counterparties are charged to current operations. Mark-tomarket values of the foreign currency swaps are not included in the determination of net income
but are disclosed in the relevant note to these financial statements.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Effective January 1, 2005)
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized where:


the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;



the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or



the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset.
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Impairment of Financial Assets (Effective January 1, 2005)
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired.
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of
an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statements of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss, is transferred
from equity to the statements of income. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not recognized in profit. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.
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Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognized in net profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the amortization process.
Related Parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
ABS-CBN


Airtime revenue is recognized as income on the dates the advertisements are aired. The fair
values of barter transactions are included in airtime revenues and the related accounts. These
transactions represent advertising time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or
service.



Rendering of services include:
a. Subscription fees which are recognized as follows:


DTH subscribers and cable operators. Subscription fees are recognized under the
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements.



Share in DirecTV subscription revenue. Subscription revenue from subscribers of
DirecTV who subscribe to The Filipino Channel (TFC) channel is recognized in
accordance with the Deal Memorandum, as discussed in Note 29.

b. Telecommunications revenue are recognized when earned. These are stated net of the
share of the other telecommunications carriers, if any, under existing correspondence and
interconnection agreements. Interconnection fees and charges are based on agreed rates
with the other telecommunications carriers.
Income from prepaid phone cards are realized based on actual usage hours or expiration of
the unused value of the card, whichever comes earlier. Income from prepaid card sales for
which the related services have not been rendered as of balance sheet date, is presented as
part of “Accrued interest and other current liabilities” under “Trade and other payables”
account in the consolidated balance sheets.
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License fees earned from DirecTV is recognized upon migration of the DTH subscribers of
ABS-CBN International to DirecTV. The additional license fees for each migrated subscriber
that will remain for 14 consecutive months from the date of activation, will be recognized on
the 14th month (see Note 29).



Sale of goods is recognized when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards
has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts, returns and allowances.



Channel lease revenue (included under “Revenues - Sales and services” account in the
consolidated statements of income) is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.



Income related to the sale and installation of decoders of ABS-CBN Australia (included under
“Revenues - Sales and services” account in the consolidated statements of income) which has
no stand alone value without the subscription revenues are aggregated and recognized ratably
over the longer of subscription contract term or the estimated customer service life.



Short-messaging-system/text-based revenues, sale of news materials and ABS-CBN-produced
programs are recognized upon delivery.



Rental income is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For
income tax purposes, rental income is taxable based on the provisions of the lease contracts.

Maynilad Water (see Note 3)


Revenue from water and sewerage services of Maynilad Water are recognized upon supply of
water to the customers. Billings to customers consist of the following:
a. Water Charges
-

Basic charges represent the basic tariff charged to consumers for the provisions of
water services. The basic tariff is subject to CPI, EPA and rate rebasing adjustments.
The weighted average basic tariff of the four consumer groups (residential, semibusiness, commercial and industrial) is P
=7.18 per cubic meter. EPA represents a fixed
=1.00 per cubic meter surcharge as defined in the Concession Agreement.
P

-

Accelerated EPA (AEPA) represents the tariff adjustment granted on October 20,
2001 until December 31, 2002, for the recovery of realized foreign exchange losses as
of December 31, 2000. The weighted average AEPA of the four consumer groups is
=4.21 per cubic meter.
P

-

Foreign Currency Differential Adjustment (FCDA) is the mechanism that allows
Maynilad Water to recover foreign exchange losses on a current basis beginning
January 1, 2002 until the Expiration Date. The weighted average FCDA of the four
consumer groups is P
=4.07 per cubic meter.

-

Maintenance service charge represents a fixed monthly charge per connection. The
charge varies depending on the meter size.
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b. Environmental charge represents 10% of the water charges.
c. Sewerage charge represents 50% of the water charges for all consumers connected to
Maynilad Water’s sewer lines.
Other Revenues


Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.



Dividends are recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as an interest expense.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are
capitalized until the assets are ready for their intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded. Borrowing costs include
interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
For income tax reporting purposes, interest is treated as a deductible expense during the period the
interest is incurred.
Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit plan, except for ABS-CBN
International which has a defined contribution plan. The Company also agreed to provide certain
unfunded long-term employee benefits to employees upon retirement. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net
cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the
previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.
The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
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The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.
Operating Leases
Company as Lessee. Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly against income.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Company as Lessor. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same bases as rental income.
For income tax purposes, rental expense is deductible based on the provisions of the lease
contracts.
Income Taxes
Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.
Deferred Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including
asset revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized
when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.
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Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in domestic subsidiaries and associates. With respect to investments in other
subsidiaries and associates, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are measured at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
Foreign Currency Translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in peso, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Company determines its own functional currency
and items included in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the statements of income with the exception of differences
on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity.
These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are
recognized in profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The functional currency of ABS-CBN International and ABS-CBN Middle East FZ-LLC is the
United States Dollar while the functional currency of ABS-CBN Europe, Ltd. is Great Britain
Pound. As at the reporting date, the balance sheets of these subsidiaries are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (the Philippine peso) at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date and, their statements of income are translated at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a
separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.
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Foreign exchange differentials of Maynilad Water arising from foreign currency transactions are
credited or charged to operations. As approved by the MWSS BOT under Amendment No. 1 of
the Concession Agreement, the following will be recovered through billings to customers:


Restatement of foreign currency-denominated loans;



Excess of actual concession fee payments over the amounts of concession fees translated
using the original bid rate (P
=51.86 starting January 1, 2005).



Excess of actual interest payments translated at exchange spot rates on settlement dates over
the amounts of interest translated at drawdown rates; and



Excess of actual payments of other financing charges relating to foreign currencydenominated loans translated at exchange spot rates on settlement dates over the amount of
other financing charges translated at drawdown rates.

In view of the automatic reimbursement mechanism, Maynilad Water recognized a Deferred
FCDA and STM (included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the 2004 consolidated
balance sheets) with a corresponding credit (debit) to FCDA revenues for the unrealized foreign
exchange gain (loss) which have not been billed to the customers.
Assets Held in Trust
In 2004, assets which are owned by MWSS but are used in the operations of Maynilad Water
under the Concession Agreement are not reflected in the 2004 consolidated balance sheet but are
carried as Assets Held in Trust.
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) for the year
attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) per share, the net income (loss) attributable
to common shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential common shares from the conversion of Perpetual Convertible
Bonds. The number of common shares is the weighted average number of common shares plus
the weighted average number of common shares which would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive potential common shares into common shares. For calculation purposes, Perpetual
Convertible Bonds are deemed to have been converted into common shares at the date of the issue
of the convertible bonds.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Subsequent Events
Subsequent events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material.
Business Segments
The Company is organized into 3 major operating businesses, namely, investment holdings,
broadcasting and entertainment and water distribution (up to July 20, 2005 - see Note 3). The
Company’s remaining activity of information service is shown as services. Financial information
on business segments is presented in Note 6.
5. Management’s Use of Judgments and Estimates
The Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under PFRSs require management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. In preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements, the
Company has made its best estimates and judgments of certain amounts, giving due consideration
to materiality.
The Company believes the following represent a summary of these significant estimates and
judgments and related impact and associated risks in its consolidated financial statements:
Estimated useful lives. The useful life of each of the Company’s property and equipment and
intangible assets with definite life is estimated based on the period over which the asset is expected to
be available for use. Estimation for property and equipment is based on a collective assessment of
industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets while for intangible
assets with definite life, estimated life is based on the life of agreement covering such intangibles.
The estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, or other limits on the use of the asset. It is
possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the
amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.
A reduction in the estimated useful life of any property and equipment or intangible assets would
increase the recorded expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization as of December 31, 2005
and 2004 amounted to P
=10,761 million and P
=15,098 million, respectively (see Note 11).
Production and distribution business - Middle East of ABS-CBN amounted to P
=142 million and
P158 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see Note 13).
=
Asset impairment. PAS 36 requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment
indicators are present. In purchase accounting, estimation and judgment are used in the allocation of
the purchase price to the fair market values of the assets and liabilities purchased. Likewise,
determining the fair value of assets requires the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated
from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets.
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While it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the results of operations.
Noncurrent assets subject to impairment testing when certain impairment indicators are present
follows:
2005
Property and equipment
Long-term receivables from related parties
Noncurrent program rights and other intangible
assets
Deposits
Tax credits

(In Millions)

2004

P
=10,761
2,342

=15,098
P
2,191

1,517
553
1,767
P
=16,940

1,548
2,616
1,864
=23,317
P

An impairment loss of P
=2 billion was recognized in 2005 for the Company’s investment in SkyVision
based on assumptions outlined in Note 12. No impairment loss for other long-lived assets was
recognized in 2005 and 2004.
Impairment of goodwill. Goodwill is annually evaluated for impairment. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Company to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=126 million included
in “Deferred charges and others” account under “Other noncurrent assets - net” account in the
consolidated balance sheets (see Notes 12 and 14).
No impairment loss was recognized in 2005 and 2004.
Deferred tax assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that sufficient
taxable profit will be generated to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
Recognized deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=294 million and
=42 million, respectively. Unrecognized deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
P
amounted to P
=3,093 million and P
=2,888 million, respectively (see Note 24).
Financial assets and liabilities. PFRSs require that certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) be carried at fair value, which requires the use of accounting estimates and
judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable
objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the timing and amount
of changes in fair value would differ using a different valuation methodology. Any change in the fair
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values of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) directly affect profit or loss
and stockholders’ equity.
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are set out in Note 27.
Allowance for doubtful accounts and decline in value of inventory. The Company maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and decline in value of inventory at a level considered adequate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables and decline in value of inventories. The level of
allowance is evaluated by management based on experience and other factors that may affect the
recoverability of these assets. If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on trade and
other receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or
through use of an allowance account. The allowance is established by charges to income in the form
of provision for doubtful accounts and decline in value of inventory. The amount and timing of
recorded expenses for any period would therefore differ based on the judgments or estimates made.
An increase in provision for doubtful accounts and decline in value of inventory would increase the
Company’s recorded expenses and decrease current assets.
Provision for doubtful accounts amounted to P
=354 million in 2005 and P
=234 million in 2004.
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, amounted to P
=4,695 million
and P
=4,312 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Allowance for doubtful
accounts as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=599 million and P
=1,244 million,
respectively (see Note 8).
Inventories, net of allowance for decline in value of inventory, amounted to P
=142 million and
=457 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see Note 9).
P
Pension Benefits. The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.
This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates on government bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
the terms of the related pension liability.
In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are accumulated
and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future periods. While management believes that the assumptions are reasonable
and appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions
may materially affect the Company’s pension and other retirement obligations.
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 25.
Accrued pension and other long-term employee benefits amounted to P
=519 million and
=716 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see Notes 15 and 25).
P
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Contingencies. The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The Company’s
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation
with outside counsel handling defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. The Company currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 31).
6. Segment Information
The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Company’s
risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services
produced. Secondary information is reported geographically. The operating businesses are
organized and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets.
Segment information is prepared on the following bases:
Business segments: The Company’s main businesses are investment holdings, broadcasting and
entertainment and water distribution (up to July 20, 2005 - see Note 3). Broadcasting and
entertainment is further segmented into three business activities - broadcasting, cable and satellite,
and other businesses. This segmentation is the basis upon which ABS-CBN reports its primary
segment information. The broadcasting segment is principally the television and radio
broadcasting activities which generate revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.
Cable and satellite business primarily develops and produces programs for cable television,
including delivery of television programming outside the Philippines through its DTH satellite
service, cable television channels and blocked time on television stations. Other businesses
include movie production, consumer products and services. The Company’s remaining activity
includes information service.
Geographical segments: Although ABS-CBN is organized into three business activities, they
operate in three major geographical areas. In the Philippines, its home country, ABS-CBN is
involved in broadcasting, cable operations and other businesses. In the United States and other
locations (which includes Middle East, Europe and Australia), ABS-CBN operates its cable and
satellite operations to bring television programming outside the Philippines.
Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include
transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.
ABS-CBN’s geographical segments are based on the location of ABS-CBN’s assets. Sales to
external customers disclosed in geographical segments are based on the geographical location of
its customers.
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=2,860
P

P
=2,383

P
=1,642
–
=1,838
P

=3,696
P
–

=249
P
–

P
=807

P
=3,977
–

(P
=516)
–

=838
P

=1,124
P
–

=119
P
–

(P
=1,865)

(P
=1,420)
(7,736)

(858)

(P
=13)

(P
=3,909)

(P
=1,102)
(11,160)

(P
=11)
594

=64,269
P
=32,129
P

P
=44,571
P
=19,897

=47,942
P
16,327

313
(3,838)
(287)
(1,552)
(278)
625
(P
=1,205)

400
(2,838)
800
1,330
(191)
(407)
P
=732

P
=26,962
17,609

=687
P
1,573

(P
=195)
3,163

Depreciation and
amortization
Noncash expenses other than
depreciation and
amortization

17

320

2,319

=11
P

19

P
=6

–

54

P
=1,334

–

43

=414
P

–

–

P
=–

–

4

=–
P

515

1,761

P
=1,287

311

1,763

=1,331
P

465

202

P
=290

205

177

=288
P

12

99

P
=111

22

98

=91
P

(292)

–

P
=29

–

(4)

(P
=14)

3,019

2,135

858

2,098

=2,121
P

P
=3,057

P
=3,918

=20,027
P
2,430

P
=1,132
–

2005
P
=21,347
–
P
=21,347

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=19,677
P
–
=19,677
P

Consolidated

Other Segment
Information
Capital Expenditures

=35
P

P
=20,695
44

=1,448
P
268

2005
P
=–
(384)
(P
=384)

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
(P
=–)
(272)
(P
=272)

Elimination

24,165
14

P
=9

=19
P
18

P
=826
94

Other Business of ABS-CBN
2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
2005
=1,020
P
P
=1,367
95
273
=925
P
P
=1,640

=56,328
P

=13,942
P

P
=–
10

(P
=17)
–

2005
P
=4,068
–
P
=40,68

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=3,896
P
118
=4,014
P

Cable Satellite

16,257
28

P
=–

=20,106
P
–

(P
=2)
–

2005
P
=11,612
111
P
=11,723

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=10,857
P
59
=10,916
P

Broadcasting

P
=36,182

=16,525
P

P
=14,645

P
=–
–

(P
=800)
–

2005
P
=–
–
P
=–

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=–
P
–
=–
P

Services

Consolidated total liabilities

P4,071
=
25,038

P
=777
–

2005
P
=4,301
–
P
=4,301

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=3,905
P
–
=3,905
P

Water Distribution

Segment liabilities
Bank loans and long-term
debt
Income tax payable

Consolidated total assets

Segment Assets and
Liabilities
Segment assets
Investment in associates

(P
=301)
711

P
=2,068
25,291

(P
=2,399)
3,927

Results
Segment result
Investment income

Interest income
Interest and financing
charges
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Income before income tax
Income tax
Minority interest
Net income

2005
P
=–
–
P
=–

Revenues
Intersegment-sales
Total revenues

2004
(As restated see Notes 3
and 4)
=–
P
–
=–
P

Investment Holdings

The following tables present revenue and income information and certain asset and liability information regarding business segments for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Business Segment Data
(Amounts In Millions)
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Other segment information
Segment assets
Capital expenditures
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue
=22,000
P
807
745

708
799

=12,654
P
271
=10,887
P

P
=25,770

P
=13,202
384
P
=13,586

2004
(As restated see Note 2)
2005

Philippines

170
–

P
=1,863

P
=2,919
–
P
=

65
6

=1,911
P

=2,779
P
–
=2,621
P

2004
(As restated see Note 2)
2005

United States

11
–

P
=1,169

P
=926
–
P
=

41
46

P
=3,542

=338
P
–
=338
P

2004
(As restated see Note 2)
2005

Others

–
29

(P
=4,301)

P
=–
(384)
P
=

2005

Eliminations

–
(14)

(P
=3,908)

=–
P
(271)
(P
=271)

2004

889
828

P
=24,501

P
=17,047
–
P
=17,047

913
783

=23,545
P

=15,772
P
–
=15,772
P

2004
(As restated see Note 2)
2005

Consolidated

Geographical Segment Data
The following tables present revenue and expenditure and certain asset information regarding geographical segments of ABS-CBN for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
(Amounts in Millions)
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2005
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments

(In Millions)

2004

=1,436
P
3,091
=4,527
P

P
=1,295
1,046
P
=2,341

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of up to 90 days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. Short-term investments with
original maturities of three months to one year are shown separately in the 2004 consolidated
balance sheet.
8. Trade and Other Receivables
2005
Trade
Due from related parties (see Note 19)
Others
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(In Millions)

2004

=4,835
P
270
451
5,556
(1,244)
=4,312
P

P
=4,360
275
659
5,294
(599)
P
=4,695

Trade receivables in 2004 include unbilled receivables of Maynilad Water amounting to P
=284
million.
9. Other Current Assets
2005
Prepaid taxes and others
Materials and supplies at net realizable value
Advances to contractors and suppliers
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P
=686
142
–
P
=828

(In Millions)

2004
=673
P
457
110
=1,240
P
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10. Investments and Advances in Associates
2005
Investments in shares of stock of associates
(see Notes 1 and 2)
Investments in Share Option Acquisition Rights
(SOARs)
Advances to associates (see Note 19)
Valuation allowance
Net

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

P
=16,476

=14,999
P

1,100
17,576
3,333
(3,300)
33
P
=17,609

1,100
16,099
3,268
(3,040)
228
=16,327
P

Investments in Shares of Stock of Associates
Associates of the Company are all incorporated in the Philippines. The details and movements of
investments in shares of stock of associates follow:
Principal Activities
FPHC, 44.61%-owned in 2005
and 46.47%-owned in 2004
Rockwell Land Corporation
(Rockwell), 24.50%-owned *
First Philippine Infrastructure
Development Corporation
(FPIDC), 49%-owned in 2005
and 62%-owned in 2004**
Professional Services, Inc.
(Medical City), 18.01%owned in 2005 and 18.61%owned in 2004
Bayantrade Dotcom, Inc.,
10.25%-owned
Bayantel, 68% owned
[see Note 1(c)]
SkyVision, 22.32%-owned***
(see Note 2)
Corporate Information
Solutions, Inc., 49%-owned
Others

Power generation and
distribution

2005

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

P
=13,086

=11,895
P

Real estate

1,536

1,481

Infrastructure

1,327

976

472

391

E-commerce

1

–

Telecommunications

–

–

Cable television

–

194

Computer services
Film distribution,
broadcasting and
information service
provider

–

–

54
P
=16,476

62
=14,999
P

Health care

* An additional 24.50% of Rockwell is owned by FPHC.
** An additional 51% in 2005 and 38% in 2004 of FPIDC is owned by FPHC. However, effective in 2003, voting rights of FPHC is
equivalent to 67% while voting rights of the Parent Company is 33%.
*** Includes 10.17% interest of ABS-CBN in SkyVision.
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2005
Acquisition costs
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year, as previously
reported
Adoption of PFRS 3
Share in the effect of change in accounting
policies (see Note 4)
Balance at beginning of year, as restated
Share in effect of PAS 39
Balance as of January 1, 2005
Equity in net earnings of associates
Loss on dilution of equity interest
Dividends received
Balance at end of year
Share in equity adjustment from translation (net of
=9 million allowance for impairment in value
P
of investment in Bayantel)
Share in unrealized gain on fair value
of available-for-sale investments

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

P
=8,209

=8,209
P

6,434
58

5,229
158

(459)
6,033
271
6,304
2,760
(492)
(508)
8,064

(673)
4,714
–
4,714
1,582
–
(254)
6,042

152

748

51
P
=16,476

–
=14,999
P

Accumulated losses of subsidiaries and associates included in the Parent Company’s deficit as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=8,064 million and P
=6,042 million, respectively.
A discussion on the Company’s major associates follow:
a. FPHC
FPHC is involved in management and investment holdings of subsidiaries and associates that
are engaged in but not limited to power generation and power distribution, roads and tollways
operations, pipeline services, real estate development, manufacturing, construction, securities
transfer services and financing. Significant contracts and commitments of FPHC are
discussed in Note 29(e).
Condensed consolidated financial information of FPHC follow:
2005

2004*

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
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P
=41,393
84,275
(18,921)
(57,285)
P
=49,462

P24,641
=
104,809
(18,585)
(68,167)
=42,698
P
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2005

2004*

(Amounts in Millions)

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

P
=55,490
(45,785)
P
=9,705

P40,781
=
(33,760)
=7,021
P

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.

b. Manila Electric Company (MERALCO)
MERALCO is a 26.82%-owned associate of FPHC. MERALCO is involved in the
distribution and supply of electricity covering 25 cities and 86 municipalities in Metro Manila
and in six provinces surrounding Metro Manila.
Prior to the enactment in 2001 of RA No. 9136, the “Electric Power Industry Reform Act of
2001”, MERALCO was subject to the ratemaking regulations and regulatory policies of the
Energy Regulatory Board (ERB). On June 8, 2001, RA No. 9136 was signed into law.
RA No. 9136 abolished the ERB and created in its place the Energy Regulatory Commission
(ERC).
On June 9, 2003, President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo signed into law RA No. 9209, “Manila
Electric Company Franchise”, which took effect on June 28, 2003. The law granted
MERALCO a 25-year franchise to construct, operate and maintain an electric distribution
system and consolidated MERALCO’s 50 franchises servicing 25 cities and 86 municipalities
in Metro Manila and in six surrounding provinces.
GRAM Case
The ERC promulgated an Order dated February 24, 2003 in ERC Case No. 2003-44 adopting
the Implementing Rules for the Recovery of Fuel and Independent Power Producer Costs or
the Generation Rate Adjustment Mechanism (GRAM). The GRAM Implementing Rules
provide, among others, that before any generation cost is passed on to consumers by the
distribution utilities, a petition must be filed at the ERC for approval. The GRAM
Implementing Rules did not require publication of, nor the conduct of public hearings on
filings made under the GRAM. MERALCO filed its application docketed as ERC Case
No. 2004-112 for approval of actual generation costs for the period November 2003 to
January 2004. In the Order dated June 2, 2004, the ERC approved the adjustment of
MERALCO’s Generation Charge to =
P3.3213 per kwh in accordance with the GRAM
Implementing Rules.
The National Association of Electricity Consumers for Reforms (NASECORE) filed a Petition
with the Supreme Court (SC) questioning the approval. In a Decision promulgated on
February 2, 2006, the SC declared as void the ERC Order dated June 2, 2004 on the ground
that the application and the GRAM Implementing Rules failed to satisfy the requirements on
publication. Both the ERC and MERALCO filed their respective motions for reconsideration
of the SC decision.
No provisioning has been made in this case since the SC did not order the refund of the
generation charge collections under the GRAM. In addition, generation costs for the period
covered by the GRAM have all been confirmed for recovery from customers. If recovery is
not allowed through the GRAM, it will be recovered through some other methods that the
ERC may allow.
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Unbundling Rate Case Filed with the SC
On April 14, 2000, MERALCO filed with the ERB an application for a P
=0.30 per kwh rate
increase.
In accordance with Section 36 of RA No. 9136, the ERC required the National Power
Corporation (NPC) and all the distribution utilities to file their unbundled rate charges within
six months from the effectivity of RA No. 9136. On December 26, 2001, MERALCO filed
with the ERC a petition for its unbundled rate charges. The filing was made in accordance
with the Uniform Filing Requirements (UFR) issued by the ERC on October 30, 2001. On
June 17, 2002, the ERC issued an Order consolidating MERALCO’s P
=0.30 per kwh rate
increase petition (ERC Case No. 2001-646) with its unbundling petition (ERC Case No. 2001900), in order to simplify and expedite the resolution of the rate cases.
On March 20, 2003, the ERC promulgated its Decision on the consolidated petitions.
MERALCO filed on April 9, 2003 a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) of the March 20, 2003
Decision. On May 30, 2003, the ERC issued an Order resolving MERALCO’s motion. It also
approved MERALCO’s unbundled tariffs that will result in a total increase of P
=0.17 per kwh
over May 2003 levels, after giving effect to the reduction of rates ordered by the SC in
April 2003. This consists of P
=0.0835 per kwh increase reflecting higher generation and
transmission charges and a P
=0.0865 per kwh increase in MERALCO-related charges
(distribution, supply, and metering). The tariff increase was implemented in June 2003.
Certain consumer groups appealed to the Court of Appeals (CA) the above ERC Decision of
March 20, 2003 and Order dated May 30, 2003 authorizing the tariff increase. On July 22,
2004, the CA rendered its Decision annulling and setting aside the ERC Decision and Order
and remanding the case to ERC for further proceedings. It also ordered ERC to direct the
Commission on Audit (COA) to audit the books, records and accounts of MERALCO. On
August 17, 2004, MERALCO filed an MR of the said CA decision. On January 24, 2005, the
CA denied MERALCO’s MR.
On March 11, 2005, MERALCO filed with the SC a Petition for Review of the CA decision.
Earlier, on February 11, 2005, the ERC filed with the SC a petition asking the SC to set aside
the CA Decision and Resolution and reinstating and affirming its Decision and Order on the
MERALCO’s consolidated petitions. The Lawyers Against Monopoly and Poverty (LAMP)
filed on January 31, 2005 a Manifestation with the ERC asking that MERALCO be directed to
refrain from collecting and to recall the bills issued for the new unbundled rates. This was
denied for lack of merit by ERC in an Order dated February 3, 2005.
In the opinion of MERALCO’s external counsels, MERALCO and the ERC have raised valid
and compelling arguments that could set aside the CA decision.
Although MERALCO filed a petition for review with the SC on March 11, 2005, MERALCO
has provided for these probable losses amounting to P
=5,901 million in 2005 and P
=9,824
million in 2005, [excluding its tax effect of P
=2,065 million in 2005 and P
=3,144 million]. Such
amount represents MERALCO’s best estimate of probable losses in the event of a final and
executory adverse decision on the case. As of April 28, 2006, the SC has not ruled on the
petition.
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SC Decision on the =
P0.167 Refund
On January 28, 1994, the ERB granted MERALCO a provisional rate relief of P
=0.184 per kwh
in ERB Case No. 93-118. However, on February 16, 1998, the ERB rendered its decision
disallowing income tax as an operating expense over the protestation of MERALCO on the
ground that this was not only the existing practice but also sanctioned by the ERB in other
cases. MERALCO appealed to the CA which reversed the decision of the ERB in the
February 26, 1999 decision of the said appellate court. In February 2000, the oppositors to the
rate relief elevated the case to the SC which in turn reversed the CA decision on
November 15, 2002 and ordered MERALCO to refund to its customers P
=0.167 per kwh
starting with MERALCO’s billing cycles beginning February 1994 until February 1998 or
correspondingly credit the same against future consumption. MERALCO filed a Motion for
Reconsideration but the SC denied it with finality on April 30, 2003. The loss arising from
the SC decision amounted to P
=30,055 million, which represents the amount of refund to its
customers of P
=0.167 per kwh for billing cycles from February 1994 to April 30, 2003
The ERC approved the release of the refund in four phases. The last phase, Phase IV, is
ongoing.
In connection with the above refund, GMA Network, Inc. and RGMA Network, Inc. joined
the NASECORE in requesting the ERC to compel MERALCO to pay interest. But in an
Order dated December 21, 2004, the ERC denied their motions on the grounds that: (i) the
SC’s judgment on the refund did not provide for payment of interest; and that (ii) it had long
become final and executory and can no longer be altered or amended.
On February 2, 2005, GMA Network, Inc. and RGMA Network, Inc. filed a Petition in the CA
praying that MERALCO be ordered to immediately refund the amounts due to them plus legal
interest of 6% per annum from February 1994 to April 9, 2004 when the Decision of the SC
became final and executory and 12% per annum from April 9, 2004 until fully paid.
On January 2, 2006, MERALCO received the Resolution of the CA denying the Petition of
GMA Network, Inc. and RGMA Network, Inc. on the ground that the ruling of the ERC on
the refund implementation deserves respect and that the refund amounts do not earn interest.
Contingencies


Contingent Asset
(1) As of December 31, 2005, MERALCO has a contingent asset amounting to
=4,122 million consisting of underrecoveries for Transmission Charge of
P
=3,316 million and for System Loss Charge of P
P
=806 million. These underrecoveries
accumulated in the absence of an adjustment mechanism for these two charges when
the unbundled rates were implemented.
(2) MERALCO has a contingent asset for overpaid income taxes for the years 1994 to
1998 and 2000 to 2001 estimated at P
=7,107 million. MERALCO has filed its claim
for the recovery of the excess income taxes for the said taxable years. The BIR
examination resulted to net income tax refund of P
=6,690 million subject to a
resolution of the issue on prescription which is being heard by the CTA. The BIR
allowed MERALCO an income tax refund for the year 2001 of P
=894 million.
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MERALCO amended its petition in the CTA to reflect the recoverable amount
established by the BIR.


Contingent liabilities
(1) Realty tax assessment
MERALCO is being assessed by certain local governments units (LGUs) for realty
taxes on certain properties of MERALCO such as its electric poles, wires, insulators,
and transformers. One of these cases is now on appeal with the SC because of the
CA’s decision declaring that the electric poles, wires, insulators and transformers are
subject to realty tax under the Local Government Code. An adverse decision on any
of these cases may result in tax assessments by all LGUs within the franchise areas of
MERALCO.
To address the possible liabilities for these realty taxes, MERALCO filed an
application with the ERC for a mechanism to recover all types of tax assessments by
LGUs excluding the local franchise tax. The first and only hearing on the application
was conducted on May 23, 2005. The case is still pending approval by the ERC.
MERALCO believes that with such a pass-through mechanism, the LGUs will
exercise prudence is assessing MERALCO whether on a retroactive or prospective
basis, as this will translate to higher amount of bills for its constituents.
(2) Local franchise tax
MERALCO was assessed by certain local governments for local franchise tax during
the period when such LGUs were not qualified to assess. In the opinion of
management of MERALCO and its legal counsel, MERALCO has strong legal
grounds to contest the assessments. At any rate, even assuming that the said
assessments are upheld by the courts, the principle adopted by the ERC is that
franchise tax payments are recoverable from the rates. The unbundled rates approved
by the ERC allow MERALCO to recover the current franchise tax payments.
The final outcome of (1) and (2) cannot presently be determined, and no provision for any
additional liability that may arise from an adverse decision on these cases has been made
in the financial statements of MERALCO. The Company has likewise not provided for
their share in the possible liabilities.
MERALCO accounts for its utility plant at “deemed cost” (recorded revalued amount as
of January 1, 2004). Appropriate adjustments have been made on the financial statements
of MERALCO to conform to the cost method followed by the Company in accounting for
property and equipment.
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Condensed consolidated financial information of MERALCO before adjustment to reverse
the effect of “deemed cost” on utility plant follow:
2004*

2005

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net loss

P
=47,853
116,483
(48,175)
(77,700)
P
=38,461

P36,896
=
126,466
(68,086)
(64,366)
=35,910
P

P
=174,268
(174,475)
(P
=207)

P151,614
=
(153,378)
(P
=1,764)

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.

c. Rockwell
Rockwell is engaged in real estate development, sale or lease of residential and commercial
lots and units and lease of mall facilities.
In May 2002, Rockwell commenced construction of its new condominium project - the
“Manansala”. The project broke ground in May 2002 with 98% market take up as of
December 31, 2005. The Manansala was completed in December 2005.
In January 2004, Rockwell launched the Joya, a new residential tower at the east side of
Rockwell Center. The project broke ground on August 27, 2004, with 82% market take up at
=5,100 million as of December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, the construction activity
P
is in the superstructure phase. Total estimated cost to complete the project amounted to
=4,600 million. Rockwell expects to complete the Joya by 2008.
P
Condensed financial information for Rockwell, before intercompany elimination, follow:
2005

2004*

(Amounts in Millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

P
=4,066
7,218
(2,077)
(2,941)
P
=6,266

=5,572
P
4,856
(2,641)
(1,747)
=6,040
P

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

P
=2,553
(2,265)
P
=288

P2,749
=
(2,511)
=238
P

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.
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d. FPIDC
FPIDC is 49%-owned by the Parent Company and 51%-owned by FPHC (see discussion on
“Investment in SOARs”).
Shareholders’ Agreement
FPIDC, acting as the corporate implementing arm of its shareholders, namely, the Parent
Company and FPHC, obtains noninterest-bearing cash advances from its shareholders, then
partly advances the same to its subsidiary, Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC), for
the payment of construction costs and other project development costs incurred in relation to
the North Luzon Expressways (NLE) Tollway Project and working capital requirements of
MNTC.
On December 16, 1999, the Parent Company, FPIDC, Lopez, and FPHC entered into a
shareholders agreement wherein the parties agreed that any shareholder advances extended by
FPIDC to MNTC which would earn interest at the cost of capital rate shall be treated as
shareholders loans accruing interest at the cost of capital rate compounded monthly (until full
payment). The total interest incurred and to be incurred on such shareholder loans shall be
payable to the Parent Company and FPHC at a ratio of 70:30. As agreed by the Parent
Company and FPHC, there will be no cost of capital beginning January 1, 2001. It was also
agreed that the Parent Company shall be entitled to reimbursement for corporate expenses paid
for the benefit of FPIDC.
Condensed consolidated financial information of FPIDC follow:
2005

(In Millions)

2004*

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

P
=3,390
17,798
(1,192)
(12,269)
P
=7,727

P1,034
=
19,277
(1,729)
(13,742)
=4,840
P

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)

P
=5,117
(3,590)
P
=1,527

P122
=
(337)
(P
=215)

* The 2004 amounts are based on restated balances.

Investment in SOARs
On December 23, 2002, the Parent Company, FPIDC, FPHC and Lopez entered into a
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) wherein the parties agreed to the following terms:
1) The Parent Company shall assign P
=1,100 million worth of advances made to FPIDC in favor
of FPHC for a total consideration of P
=1,100 million (Acquired Advances).
2) FPHC shall issue a promissory note (Note) in the same amount, payable to the Parent
Company in 18 months after the date of the issue, subject to conversion into a 15-year loan
under such terms that may be agreed with the Parent Company. FPHC shall have the right,
but not the obligation, to apply any portion of the Note against the corresponding amount of
the SOAR issue price and deposit for the relevant SOAR, as discussed below.
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3) FPHC shall convert a portion of its original advances and a portion of the Acquired Advances
into such number of shares of stocks of FPIDC which will result in a combined ownership
between the Parent Company and Lopez of not more than 33-1/3% of FPIDC.
The MOA also states that until after the Acquired Advances has been fully paid, FPHC undertakes
that, upon each conversion of any portion of the Acquired Advances into shares of FPIDC, FPHC
shall create SOARs on such shares in favor of the Parent Company for a consideration of
=0.10 per share plus a P
P
=99.90 deposit, which will be applied towards the purchase price of the
Underlying Share. The SOARs shall entitle the Parent Company to (1) delivery of one share of
stock of FPIDC which has been converted from the Acquired Advances upon the occurrence of
any Trigger Event, as defined in the MOA, (2) delivery of the net proceeds arising from the sale of
such Underlying Share in the event of a sale by FPHC, and (3) rights to dividends or other
economic benefits relating to or arising out of each Underlying Share.
Also on December 23, 2002, the Parent Company and FPHC entered into a Deed of Assignment to
implement the said MOA and FPHC issued a promissory note to the Parent Company in
consideration of the assignment.
As of December 31, 2005, 6,791,800 SOARs were issued in favor of the Parent Company.
Upon completion of the recapitalization of FPIDC in the third quarter of 2003, the Parent
Company owns 62% of the issued and outstanding shares of FPIDC representing 33% of the
voting rights and 62% of the economic interest by virtue of the 29% equivalent voting rights
granted to FPHC.
As of December 31, 2005, the Parent Company owns 49% of FPIDC.
Advances to Associates
Details of this account follow:
2005
Bayantel
SkyVision (net of accumulated equity in net losses
of P
=203 million in 2005 and P
=9 million in 2004)
Others
Valuation allowance

(In Millions)

2004

P
=3,300

=3,040
P

–
33
3,333
(3,300)
P
=33

194
34
3,268
(3,040)
=228
P
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=650
P
–
–
(2)
–
=648
P

Year Ended December 31, 2004
Beginning net book value, as restated
Additions
Disposals/retirement
Reclassifications and other changes
Depreciation and amortization
Ending net book value

At December 31, 2004
Cost
Accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses
Net Book Value

(6)
P–
=

(5)
=631
P

=112
P
(31)
P81
=

=655
P
(7)
=648
P

P8
=
31
–
59
(17)
=81
P

=6
P

=81
P
17
(95)
–
(3)
=–
P

=636
P

=648
P
4
(24)
4
(1)
=631
P

Land

Leasehold
Improvements

At December 31, 2005
Cost
Accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses
Net Book Value

Year Ended December 31, 2005
Beginning net book value, as restated
Additions
Deconsolidation/Disposals
Reclassifications and other changes
Depreciation and amortization
Ending net book value

11. Property and Equipment

(1,263)
P8,480
=

=9,743
P

=8,666
P
7
(26)
210
(377)
=8,480
P

(1,704)
P8,227
=

=9,931
P

=8,480
P
158
(3)
46
(454)
=8,227
P

(847)
=1,626
P

=2,473
P

=1,460
P
363
–
–
(197)
=1,626
P

–
=–
P

=–
P

=1,626
P
177
(1,759)
39
(83)
=–
P

(4,077)
P1,219
=

=5,296
P

=1,232
P
273
(1)
86
(371)
=1,219
P

(4,466)
P1,054
=

=5,520
P

=1,219
P
149
(10)
183
(487)
=1,054
P

(In Millions)

Water Meter, Television, Radio,
Instrumentation,
Movie and
Auxiliary
Building and Tools and Other
Improvements
Equipment
Equipment

(2,591)
=801
P

=3,392
P

=813
P
334
1
117
(464)
=801
P

(2,563)
=730
P

=3,293
P

=801
P
1,231
(1,068)
70
(304)
=730
P

Other
Equipment

–
=2,152
P

=2,152
P

=2,211
P
–
–
(59)
–
=2,152
P

–
=–
P

=–
P

=2,152
P
129
(2,246)
(35)
–
=–
P

–
=91
P

=91
P

=171
P
331
–
(411)
–
=91
P

–
=119
P

=119
P

P91
=
335
–
(307)
–
=119
P

Rehabilitation
Work in Construction in
Progress
Progress

(8,816)
=15,098
P

=23,914
P

=15,211
P
1,339
(26)
–
(1,426)
=15,098
P

(8,744)
=10,761
P

=19,505
P

=15,098
P
2,200
(5,205)
–
(1,332)
=10,761
P

Total
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Property and equipment of ABS-CBN with a carrying amount of P
=9.6 billion and P
=10.0 billion as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively was pledged as collateral to secure ABS-CBN’s
long-term debt (see Note 16).
Unamortized borrowing costs of ABS-CBN capitalized as part of property and equipment
amounted to P
=1,011 million and P
=1,050 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
No borrowing cost was capitalized beginning 2002.
12. Other Noncurrent Assets
2005
Deposits - net of allowance for decline in value of
deposits of P
=4,280 in 2005 and P
=2,217 in 2004
(see Notes 1, 2 and 19)
Tax credits:
With tax credit certificates (TCCs)
Pending issuance of TCCs but supported by
telecast orders
Available-for-sale financial assets (see Note 27)
Deferred charges and others (Note 14)
Concession assets - net (see Note 3)
Deferred FCDA and STM (see Notes 4 and 18)
Unamortized debt issue cost (see Note 16)

(In Millions)

2004

P
=553

=2,616
P

1,767

1,809

–
756
410
–
–
–
P
=3,486

55
392
650
8,869
2,864
291
=17,546
P

a. Deposits
Deposits are payments for options to purchase shares of stock of Bayantel (P
=2,217 million)
and SkyVision (P
=2,616 million) from Lopez at a pre-agreed price. The options will be
exercised by the Parent Company when the underlying shares of the associates are listed in the
Philippine Stock Exchange in connection with their initial public offering.
In 2005, the Parent Company recognized an impairment loss of P
=2 billion on its deposits in
SkyVision. As of December 31, 2005, the remaining carrying value of the deposit amounted
to P
=553 million. The recoverable values were based on the discount rate of 13% which is
based on a debt-to-equity ratio of 61-39 of SkyVision. The cost of equity was computed by
adding the risk free rate and the risk premium multiplied by the perpetual growth rate of
SkyVision. The cost of debt was computed based on the pre-tax weighted average cost of
SkyVision’s loan. Gross revenues over the next five years will be driven by subscriber growth
by a compound average of 2.9% as well subscription rate increases of 10% every two years.
Cash expenses are projected to increase at an inflationary pace. Programming cost is assumed
to be a certain percentage of revenues.
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b. Tax Credits
Tax credits represent claims of ABS-CBN on the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. Pursuant to Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362,
these will be collected in the form of TCCs which ABS-CBN can use in paying for its import
duties and taxes on its broadcasting equipment. ABS-CBN expects to utilize these tax credits
within the next 10 years.
c. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets consist of investments in ordinary shares, and therefore
have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.
Available-for-sale investments with a carrying value of P
=14 million and P
=18 million as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, was pledged as part of the collateral to secure
ABS-CBN’s long-term debt (see Note 16).
d. Deferred Charges
In view of the deal Memorandum with DirecTV discussed in Note 29d, ABS-CBN has written
off the deferred charges amounting to P
=335 million pertaining to the DTH subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005.
e. Concession Assets
In 2004, Concession Assets consists of the unamortized concession fee and commencement
fees recognized by Maynilad Water. Total concession and commencement fees amounted to
=
P10,014 million and related accumulated amortization amounted to P
=1,145 million.
13. Noncurrent Program Rights and Other Intangible Assets
December 31, 2005 (in Millions)

Balance at January 1, 2005
Additions
Amortization and write-off
during the year
(see Notes 20, 22 and 23)
Balance at December 31, 2005
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

88

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Program
Rights
=1,713
P
828
(827)
1,714
799
=915
P

Production and
Distribution
Cable
Business Channels - CPI
Middle East
=460
P
=158
P
–
–
–
460
–
=460
P

(16)
142
–
=142
P

Total
=2,331
P
828
(843)
2,316
799
=1,517
P
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Costs and related accumulated amortization of other intangible assets is as follow:

At December 31, 2005
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount

Production and
Distribution
Cable
Business Channels - CPI
Middle East
P575
=
(115)
=460
P

=212
P
(70)
=142
P

Total
P787
=
(185)
=602
P

December 31, 2004 (in Millions)

Balance at January 1, 2004
Additions
Amortization and write-off during
the year (Notes 20, 22 and 23)
Balance at December 31, 2004
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

Program
Cable
Rights Channels - CPI
=1,817
P
P489
=
783
–
(887)
1,713
783
=930
P

(29)
460
–
=460
P

Production and
Distribution
Business Middle East
=178
P
–
(20)
158
–
=158
P

Total
=2,484
P
783
(936)
2,331
783
=1,548
P

Costs and related accumulated amortization of other intangible assets is as follows:

At January 1, 2004
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount
December 31, 2004
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount

Production and
Distribution
Cable
Business Channels - CPI
Middle East

Total

=575
P
(86)
=489
P

=212
P
(34)
=178
P

P787
=
(120)
=667
P

P575
=
(115)
=460
P

=212
P
(54)
=158
P

P787
=
(170)
=617
P

In prior years, cable channels and production and distribution business were considered to have a
finite useful life with a rebuttable presumption that life would not exceed ten years from the date
when the asset was available for use.
The cable channels, namely, Lifestyle Channel, Cinema One and Myx Channel, were acquired by
CPI from SkyVision in 2001. Based on the Company’s analysis of all the relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which this business is expected to generate net cash inflows
for the Company. Due to the change in the estimated useful life of this business in the current
year resulting in indefinite lives, the cost as at January 1, 2005 is no longer amortized.
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Production and distribution business for the Middle East operations represents payments arising
from the sponsorship agreement between ADD and ABS-CBN Middle East FZ-LLC. This
agreement grants the Company the right to operate in the Middle East with ADD as sponsor. The
estimated useful life was changed from 10 years to 25 years. The change in useful life was
accounted for prospectively, resulting in a decrease in amortization expense of P
=15 million in
2005.
14. Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives of
ABS-CBN
Goodwill in investment in a subsidiary, included under “Other noncurrent assets - net” accounts in
the consolidated balance sheets, totaled P
=126 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
(P
=104 million for Parent Company and P
=22 million for ABS-CBN’s goodwill in its subsidiaries.
The Parent Company’s goodwill of P
=104 million represents goodwill in its investment in
ABS-CBN. The fair value of the Parent Company’s investment in ABS-CBN as of December 31,
2005 and 2004 amounted to P
=5,697 million and P
=8,266 million, respectively.
Cable channels of CPI amounted to P
=460 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
(see Note 13).
For the impairment test of goodwill of ABS-CBN in its subsidiaries and cable channels, the
difference between the enterprise value of the subsidiary and the net book value or fair market
value of its net assets was compared against the amount of goodwill. The enterprise value of the
subsidiaries was determined using their cash flow projections which were based on financial
budgets approved by the subsidiaries’ senior management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 21.1% while cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a 5% perpetual growth rate that is based on projected long-term
inflation rate of 3% and long-term real growth of 2%.
Key Assumptions
The following describes each key assumption on which ABS-CBN management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of its goodwill in its subsidiaries and cable
channels.
Gross revenues. On average, gross revenues of the subsidiaries over the next five years were
projected to grow in line with the economy or with nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP). This
assumes that the market share of the subsidiaries in their respective industries will be flat on the
assumption that the industries also grow at par with the economy. Historically, ad spending
growth had a direct correlation with economic growth.
Operating expenses. Cash expenses of the subsidiaries particularly employee costs and general
and administrative expenses were projected to rise at an inflationary pace. On the other hand,
production costs or cost of sales were forecast to increase in line with revenue growth.
Gross margins. Increased efficiencies over the next five years are expected to result to some
improvements in gross margins.
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Discount rate. The discount rate or Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) was based on the
cost of debt and cost of equity of ABS-CBN. The cost of equity was computed by adding the risk
free rate (based on 5-year Forex Treasury Notes) and risk premium (based on the difference
between 10-year US Treasury bonds and 10-year Philippine Peso bonds) multiplied to the equity
beta of ABS-CBN. On the other hand, the cost of debt, was computed based on the pre-tax
weighted interest cost of ABS-CBN’s loan.
15. Trade and Other Payables

2005
Trade
Accrued interest and other current liabilities
(see Note 16)
Accrued production cost, taxes and other expenses
Accrued pension and other employee
benefits (see Note 25)
Due to related parties (see Note 19)
Current portion of obligation for program rights
Current portion of obligation under capital lease
Others

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

P
=1,418

=1,528
P

4,558
1,528

3,334
3,545

519
366
361
88
28
P
=8,866

716
219
374
66
11
=9,793
P

16. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings
Effective
Interest
Rate %
Current
Parent Company:
7.875% Notes
LTCPs
ABS-CBN:
Bank loans
Long-term debt under Senior Credit
Agreement (SCA)
Bayanmap:
Peso-denominated loans
Maynilad Water:
Bank loans:
Dollar-denominated loans
($100 million)
Peso-denominated loans

2005

2004

7.875%

P
=7,963
2,000

=8,442
P
2,000

11.17%

355

467

13.01%

1,323

807

5

5

–
–
P
=11,646

5,649
1,422
=18,792
P

(In Millions)
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Noncurrent
Parent Company:
4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds
ABS-CBN:
Long-term debt under SCA (net of
transaction costs amounting to
=198 million in 2005)
P

Effective
Interest
Rate %

2005

2004

4.2%

P
=12

=12
P

4,308
P
=4,320

5,162
=5,174
P

12.87%

(In Millions)

Parent Company
a. 7.875% Notes
On June 17, 1997, the Parent Company issued 7.875% Notes of US$150 million listed in the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The 7.875% Notes which matured on December 19, 2002, bear
interest at 7.875% per annum, net of withholding taxes, payable in arrears in equal semiannual installments in June and December of each year. At the option of the Noteholders, the
Parent Company will redeem all (but not less than all) of such holder’s 7.875% Notes at any
time upon the occurrence of the Restructuring Event as defined in the Indenture, which
excludes the event described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
At the option of the Parent Company, the 7.875% Notes may be redeemed at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes, in whole or in any part,
at anytime by giving 30 to 45 days notice to Noteholders on certain conditions as defined
under the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
The 7.875% Notes constitute direct, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Parent
Company and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference or priority among
themselves. The payment obligations of the Parent Company under the 7.875% Notes shall,
save for such exceptions as may be provided by mandatory provision of law and subject to the
terms of the 7.875% Notes, at all times rank at least equally with all its other present and
future unsecured obligations.
The 7.875% Notes provide certain restrictions with respect to, among others, incurrence of
debt and merger or consolidation, except in certain circumstances.
In 2002, the Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on the above
obligations. The terms of the 7.875% Notes provide that the principal amount, together with
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts due and payable, become immediately due and
payable.
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b. LTCPs
On August 9, 1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the issuance of
=3 billion worth of LTCPs to finance the Parent Company’s investments in real property
P
development, telecommunications, infrastructure projects and power-related projects of its
subsidiaries and associates.
The LTCPs were offered and issued in two series, “A-1” for P
=1,000 million and “A-2” for
=2,000 million. Series A-1 was fully paid in 2001. Series A-2 shall be repaid in one lump
P
sum on October 1, 2003 with interest at 1-1/8% above the 91-day TB rate, also payable
quarterly in arrears.
The LTCPs provide certain restrictions and requirements with respect to, among others,
incurrence of mortgage, pledge, lien or other encumbrance over the whole or any part of the
Parent Company’s assets or revenues, merger or consolidation, sales, lease, transfer or
otherwise disposal of all or substantially all of its assets, dividend distribution and
maintenance of certain financial ratios.
The Parent Company also defaulted on its interest payments on the above obligations in 2002
and on its principal in 2003. The terms of the LTCP loan provide for the payment of penalties
should there be an event of default on interest and/or principal computed at 24% per annum
from the date of default.
c. 4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds (Bonds)
The 4.2% Bonds, listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and issued in registered form in
denomination of US$1.49 each, bear interest from November 26, 1994 at 4.2% per annum, net
of withholding taxes, determined at a fixed exchange rate and payable annually in arrears in
November 30 of each year commencing on November 30, 1995. The Bonds may be converted
on or after November 26, 1995 into fully paid common shares of the Parent Company by
reference to the Philippine peso equivalent of the US dollar-denominated principal amount of
the Bonds, determined at a fixed exchange rate, and at an initial conversion price of
=4.202396 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events. The Bonds are redeemable at the
P
option of the Parent Company, in whole or in part, at any time after November 26, 1998 at a
price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds or market price of the shares issuable upon
conversion, whichever is higher, subject to certain conditions.
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, 29,449 units have been converted into 324,337,262
common shares. Certain number of shares equivalent to 3,421,410 shares, are reserved to
cover any conversion of the outstanding Bonds into common shares and stock dividends
declared during the year.
The Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and subject to certain exceptions,
unsecured obligations of the Parent Company and shall at all times rank pari passu and
without any preference or priority among themselves and at least equally with all other present
and future unsecured obligations of the Parent Company, except for such exceptions as may be
provided by applicable legislation. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, P
=12 million of the
Bonds are outstanding.
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As discussed in Note 1, the Parent Company is currently in negotiation with the creditors to
address all its obligations. Total penalties recognized by the Parent Company amounted to
=492 million in 2005 and 2004.
P
ABS-CBN
Bank Loans
This represents peso-denominated loans obtained from local banks which bear average annual
interest rates of 11.17% in 2005 and 11.017% in 2004.
Term Loan under the SCA
On June 18, 2004, ABS-CBN entered into a SCA with several foreign and local banks (Original
Lenders) for a US$120 million dual currency syndicated term loan facility for the purpose of
refinancing existing indebtedness incurred for the construction of the Eugenio Lopez, Jr.
Communications Center, additional investment in the cable TV business and funding capital
expenditures and working capital requirements. The SCA is classified in three (3) groups namely:
Tranche A, a floating rate facility (3.5% + LIBOR) amounting to US$62 million; Tranche B, a
floating rate facility (3.5% + MART1 T-bill) amounting to P
=2,688 million; and, Tranche C, a fixed
rate facility (3.5% + FXTN) amounting to P
=560 million. Both Tranche A and Tranche B have a
term of five years with 17 quarterly unequal payments and Tranche C has a term of four years with
four annual unequal installments. These have all been availed of in March 2005. ABS-CBN’s
obligation under the SCA is secured and covered by a Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) which
consists of substantially all of ABS-CBN’s real property and moveable assets used in connection
with its business and insurance proceeds related thereto. Further, ABS-CBN’s obligation under
the SCA is jointly and severally guaranteed by its principal subsidiaries.
The SCA contains provision regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios and limiting,
among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends, making investments,
the issuing or selling ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its subsidiaries, the selling or exchange
of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of December 31, 2005, ABS-CBN is in
compliance with the provisions of the SCA.
As indicated in the SCA, all existing loans of ABS-CBN outside the SCA were settled via
proceeds of the term loan facility.
Details of the term loan under SCA using the effective interest rate method are as follows:
2005
Long-term debt under SCA
Current portion
Noncurrent portion
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=1,323
P
4,308
=5,631
P
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Transaction costs related to the SCA amounting to P
=324 million were deducted from the face
amount of the loan to get its net carrying value. This will be amortized over the life of the loan
using the effective interest rate method of amortizing transaction cost detailed as follows (amounts
in millions):
Tranche A (USD)
$–
1
1
1
–
–
$3

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

Tranche B (PHP)
=15
P
35
33
27
16
3
=129
P

Tranche C (PHP)
=3
P
8
7
5
3
1
=27
P

As of December 31, 2005, P
=126 million have been amortized and directly reported to profit and
loss.
Repayments of the term loan based on the face value of the SCA are scheduled as follows
(amounts in millions):
2006
2007
2008
2009

=1,374
P
1,682
1,827
1,099
=5,982
P

To manage its exposures to foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks relating to the facility
drawdowns, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate and cross currency swap contracts with
counterparty banks (see Notes 26 and 27).
Maynilad Water
In 2004, annual interest rates of Maynilad Water range from 1.20% to 5.40% for dollardenominated loans and from 13.75% to 14.75% for peso-denominated loans. Maynilad Water
secured these loans as a bridge financing while negotiating for a long-term loan of US$350
million. These loans were guaranteed by its stockholders, the Parent Company (see Note 3) and
Suez, through its own parent company, Suez, S.A. either alone or together (but on several basis).
As of December 31, 2004, Maynilad Water’s liability to Suez arising from Suez’s payment of a
portion of Maynilad Water’s debt amounted to P
=3 billion. These amounted are reflected as part of
the dollar-denominated loans.
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Interest and financing charges in 2005 and 2004 consists of:
2005
Interest expense
Hedge cost
Amortization of debt issue cost
Others

P
=2,365
218
87
12
P
=2,682

(In Millions)

2004

=2,136
P
–
108
–
=2,244
P

17. Estimated Liabilities from Guarantees and Commitments
2005
Balance at beginning of year
Payments during the year
Restatement of dollar-denominated guarantees
Balance at end of year

P
=10,441
(80)
–
P
=10,361

(In Millions)

2004

=10,358
P
(67)
150
=10,441
P

Provision for estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments represents the Parent
Company’s guarantees and commitments in Bayantel. A portion of the guarantees and
commitments in Bayantel that have not been provided for amounted to approximately
=1,669 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004. Such amount represents management’s
P
estimate of the Parent Company’s share in the remaining potential net worth of Bayantel. As
discussed in Note 1, pursuant to the guarantee, the Parent Company and Bayantel entered into an
Indemnity Agreement where Bayantel has agreed to indemnify the Parent Company in the event
that the Parent Company is required to pay the guaranteed obligations.
18. Other Noncurrent Liabilities
2005

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

Deferred credits (see Note 12)
Obligations under capital lease
Obligations for program rights
Customers’ guaranty, deposits and others
Deferred tax liabilities - net (see Note 24)
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P
=618
202
62
3
–
P
=885

=2,123
P
133
43
515
19
=2,833
P
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In 2004, “Deferred credits” include deferred credits of Maynilad Water amounting to P
=1.4 billion.
These represents total billings for AEPA and FCDA as of December 31, 2004 in excess of the
deferred foreign exchange losses.
Obligations Under Capital Lease
ABS-CBN has finance leases over various items of equipment. Future minimum lease payments
under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net
minimum lease payments are as follows:
2005
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
Total minimum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current portion

P
=119
233
352
62
290
88
P
=202

(In Millions)

2004
P88
=
162
250
51
199
66
=133
P

19. Related Party Transactions
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the subsidiaries listed in the following table:

Principal Activities
ABS-CBN and Subsidiaries (see Note 2) Broadcasting
Bayanmap Corporation
Information service provider
Maynilad Water (see Note 3)
Water distribution

Effective
Percentage of
Ownership
2004
2005
58.06 58.06
51.00 51.00
– 59.00

The above-mentioned subsidiaries are all incorporated in the Philippines.
Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding
balances as of year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash, except for the
noncurrent receivables of ABS-CBN from SkyVision (see Note 2). There have been no
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except those
disclosed in Notes 1 and 17. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company has
not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, allowance for doubtful accounts relating to the amounts owed by
related parties amounted to P
=3,300 million and P
=3,040 million, respectively. This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates.
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company
2005
Compensation
Pension benefit
Vacation leaves and sick leaves
Termination benefits

(In Millions)

2004
=345
P
20
5
–
=370
P

P
=424
34
4
70
P
=532

In addition to the related party transactions discussed in Notes 10 and 29, transactions of the
Parent Company with related parties involve deposits for options to purchase shares of stock of
Bayantel and SkyVision at a pre-agreed price from Lopez (see Note 12).
The outstanding gross balances of the Parent Company resulting from the above transactions as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 are carried in the following accounts in the consolidated balance
sheets:
2005
Advances to associates (see Note 10)
Deposits (see Note 12)
Due from related parties (see Note 18)
Due to related parties (see Note 15)

(In Millions)

P
=3,333
4,833
28
55

2004

=3,268
P
4,833
6
57

Significant transactions of ABS-CBN with associates and related parties follow:

Associates
Interest on noncurrent receivable from Sky Vision
License fees charged by CPI to Central, (a) PCC and
Home Cable
Blocktime fees paid by Studio 23, Inc. (Studio 23)
to Amcara Broadcasting Network, Inc.
(Amcara)(b)
Management and other service fees
Affiliates
Expenses paid by Parent Company & subsidiaries to
MERALCO, Bayantel & other related parties
Termination cost charges of Bayantel, a subsidiary
of Lopez, to ABS-CBN Global
Airtime revenue from MNTC, Bayantel and
MERALCO, an associate of Lopez
Expenses and charges paid for by the Parent
Company which are reimbursed by the
concerned related parties
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2005

2004

P
=261

=113
P

112

137

61
–

68
412

432

365

287

232

62

30

35

46

(In Millions)
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The related receivables and payables of ABS-CBN from related parties are as follows:
2005

(In Millions)

2004

Due from associates
Due from affiliates
Total

P
=151
96
P
=247

P162
=
102
=264
P

Due to associates
Due to affiliates
Total

P
= 41
271
P
=312

P25
=
137
=162
P

a. License Fees Charged by CPI to Central
CPI entered into a cable lease agreement (Agreement) with Central for the airing of the cable
channels (see Note 13) to the franchise areas of Central and its cable affiliates. The
Agreement with Central is for a period of five years effective January 1, 2001, renewable upon
mutual agreement. Under the terms of the Agreement, CPI receives license fees from Central
and its cable affiliates computed based on agreed rates and on the number of subscribers of
Central and its cable affiliates. As the owner of the said cable channels, CPI develops and
produces its own shows and acquires program rights from various foreign and local suppliers.
b. Blocktime Fees Paid by Studio 23 to Amcara
Studio 23 owns the program rights being aired in UHF Channel 23 of Amcara. On July 1,
2000, it entered into a blocktime agreement with Amcara for its provincial operations.
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4,958
3,055
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

2005
2004
2005
2004

Safege Consultancy and Montgomery
Watson (see Note 11)

Meralco Industrial Engineering Services 2005
Corp. (MIESCOR) (see Note 11)
2004

2005
2004

Suez (see Note 16)

First Philippine Balfour Beatty, Inc.
(FPBBI) (see Note 11)

Manila Electric Company (MERALCO) 2005
2004
–
–

–
–

–
–

–
6

–
–

=–
P
–

Management
Consultancy
Services

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
34

=–
P
–

(In Millions)

Guarantee
Fees

161
245

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

=–
P
–

Operating
Expenses

–
–

9
2

79
28

–
–

–
–

=–
P
–

Construction
Services

89
72

24
14

66
28

–
–

5,813
3,907

=332
P
335

Payable to
Related Parties

Revenues from Water Services
In the ordinary course of business, Maynilad Water provides water to related parties within its area. The rates for the related parties are comparable with those for
unrelated parties.

Guarantee Fees
This represents the fee charged by Suez to Maynilad Water for acting as guarantors on dollar-denominated and peso-denominated loans.

Management Consultancy Services
This represents fee charged by OSPI for consultancy services provided by expatriates to Maynilad Water.

A description of fees charges by related parties follow:

MIESCOR and FPBBI
These have common management with Maynilad Water.

OSPI
OSPI, formerly Lyonnaise Des Eaux Philippines, Inc., is a subsidiary of Suez, a stockholder of Maynilad Water.

=–
P
–

Ondeo Services Philippines, Inc. (OSPI) 2005
2004

Related party

Notes
Payable
(see Note 13)

The following are the significant transactions entered into by Maynilad Water up to July 20, 2005 with related parties (excluding the Parent Company):
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20. Cost of Sales and Services
2005

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

Personnel expenses (see Note 25)
Facilities related expenses
Inventory cost
Depreciation
Amortization of program rights
Other expenses

P
=573
536
363
48
116
738
P
=2,374

=660
P
478
545
40
121
540
=2,384
P

21. Agency Commission, Incentives and Co-Producers’ Share
2005
Agency Commission
Incentives and co-producers’ share

P
=1,535
550
P
=2,085

(In Millions)

2004

=1,760
P
436
=2,196
P

Industry rules allow ABS-CBN to sell up to 18 minutes of commercial spots per hour of television
programming. These spots are sold mainly through advertising agencies which act as the buying
agents of advertisers, and to a lesser extent, directly to advertisers. Substantially, all gross airtime
revenue, including airtime sold directly to advertisers, is subject to a standard of 15% agency
commission.
Incentives include early payment and early placement account as well as commissions paid to
ABS-CBN’s account executives.
ABS-CBN has co-produced shows which are programs produced by ABS-CBN together with
independent producers. Under this arrangement, ABS-CBN provides the technical facilities and
airtime and handles the marketing of the show. The co-producers shoulder all other costs of
production. The revenue earned on these shows is shared between ABS-CBN and the coproducers.
22. Production Costs
2005
Personnel expenses and talent fee (see Note 25)
Facilities-related expenses
Amortization of program rights
Depreciation and amortization
Other program expenses

P
=2,513
840
712
680
946
P
=5,691

(In Millions)

2004

=2,525
P
716
766
541
920
=5,468
P

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

101

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other program expenses of ABS-CBN consist of production expenses including but not limited to,
set requirements, prizes, transportation, advertising and other expenses related to the promotional
activities of various projects during the year.
23. General and Administrative Expenses

2005
Personnel expenses (see Note 25)
Depreciation and amortization
Facilities related expenses
Contracted services
Advertising and promotions
Provision for doubtful accounts
Taxes and licenses
Amusement and recreation
Other expenses

P
=2,503
872
498
481
503
160
151
119
672
P
=5,959

2004
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

=1,731
P
676
408
364
95
164
169
136
543
=4,286
P

24. Income Tax
The significant components of the Parent Company’s temporary differences in the consolidated
financial statements follow:

2005
Deductible differences on:
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
NOLCO
Deferred credits
Accrued retirement and unamortized
past service cost
Carryforward benefit of MCIT

2004
(As restated see Note 4)
(In Millions)

P
=4,043
3,816
588

=4,611
P
3,264
588

17
6
P
=8,470

19
5
=8,487
P

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Parent Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets
on these temporary differences because management believes that the Company may not be able
to generate sufficient taxable profit that will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilized.

102 BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In the consolidated financial statements, the current provision for income tax includes the MCIT
of the Parent Company. In 2005, MCIT and NOLCO amounting to P
=7 million and P
=841 million,
respectively, have expired. The Parent Company’s MCIT and NOLCO totaling P
=5 million and
=3,421 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2004, can be carried forward and claimed as
P
deduction against the regular income tax due and regular taxable income, respectively as follows:
Year Paid/Incurred

Expiry Date

2003
2004
2005

December 31, 2006
December 31, 2007
December 31, 2008

MCIT
=–
P
2
3
=5
P

NOLCO

(In Millions)

=792
P
1,188
1,441
=3,421
P

In the consolidated financial statements, the significant components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities of ABS-CBN are as follows:

2005
Deferred tax assets - net:
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Accrued retirement expense and other
long-term benefits
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Customer’s deposit
Reimbursable expenses
NOLCO
Allowance for inventory obsolescence
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
MCIT
Others
Deferred tax liabilities - net in 2004 follow:
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Accrued retirement expense and other
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Project development costs written off
Restatement of leases

2004
(As restated see Note 4)
(In Millions)

(P
=327)

=–
P

176
159
135
77
12
10
(8)
5
55
P
=294

11
18
–
–
5
4
–
4
–
=42
P

(P
=336)
216
60
45
(4)
(P
=19)
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The details of the unrecognized deductible temporary differences, NOLCO, and MCIT of the
subsidiaries of ABS-CBN are as follows:
2004
(As restated see Note 4)
2005
(In Millions)

NOLCO
Allowance for doubtful accounts
MCIT
Accrued retirement expense and others

P
=202
146
1
5
P
=354

P286
=
232
2
3
=523
P

ABS-CBN believes that it is not probable that taxable income will be available against which
temporary differences, NOLCO and MCIT will be utilized.
MCIT of the subsidiaries of ABS-CBN amounting to =
P6 million can be claimed as tax credit
against future regular corporate income tax as follows:
Year Incurred
2003
2004
2005

Expiry Date
December 31, 2006
December 31, 2007
December 31, 2008

Amount
=1
P
2
3
=6
P

NOLCO of the subsidiaries amounting to P
=234 million can be claimed as deductions from regular
corporate income tax as follows:
Year Incurred
2003
2004
2005

Expiry Date
December 31, 2006
December 31, 2007
December 31, 2008

Amount
=142
P
50
42
=234
P

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates to
the provision for income tax shown in the consolidated statements of income under continuing
operations follows:
2004
(As restated 2005
see Note 4)
Applicable statutory income tax rate
32%
32.5%
Income tax effects of the following:
Equity in net earnings of associates
32
(63)
Interest income subjected to final tax
–
(2)
Nondeductible interest and others
–
7
11
Dividend income
(12)
Change in value of unrecognized deferred tax
assets
(81)
50
Change in tax rate
–
(8)
(6%)
5%
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25. Pensions and Other Long-term Benefits
The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its permanent employees.
In 2005, ABS-CBN implemented an Early Retirement Program. The employees availed this
program from July to December 2005. Total retrenchment cost amounted to P
=576 million, net of
recognized curtailment gain of P
=158 million.
The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the
consolidated statements of income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets for the plan:
Net Benefit Expense/(Income)
Pension Plan
2004
2005

(In Millions)

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial gain recognized
during the year
Curtailment gain
Short-term normal cost
Net benefit expense/(income)
Actual return on the Parent
Company’s and ABS-CBN’s
plan assets

Other Long-term
Employee Benefits
2004
2005

P
=44
54
(15)

=48
P
48
(15)

P
=7
–
–

=8
P
–
–

(158)
–
(P
=75)

–
–
–
=81
P

–
–
19
P
=26

24
–
17
=49
P

P
=22

=11
P

P
=–

=–
P

Pension/Benefit Liability

Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognized net actuarial
(gains)/losses
Benefit liability

Other Long-term
Employee Benefits
2004
2005

Pension Plan
2005

2004

P
=365
(166)
199

P414
=
(151)
263

P
=401
–
401

=351
P
–
351

40
P
=239

52
=315
P

(121)
P
=280

50
=401
P

(In Millions)
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Consolidated changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Defined benefit obligation at
beginning of year
Interest cost
Short-term normal cost
Current service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gains) losses on
obligation
Curtailment losses
Defined benefit obligation
at end of year

Pension Plan
2005

2004

P
=414
54
–
44
–

=414
P
48
–
48
(46)

–
(147)
P
=365

(In Millions)

Other Long-term
Employee Benefits
2004
2005

=351
P
–
17
8
–

P
=401
–
19
7
(147)

(50)
–
=414
P

–
–

25
–

P
=280

=401
P

Change in the fair value of plan assets of the Company are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets
Actual contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial losses
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

2005
P
=151
15
–
–
–
P
=166

2004
P150
=
15
35
(46)
(3)
=151
P

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The principal assumptions used in determining pension and sick and vacation leave benefit
obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary rate increase

2005
13.54%
9-10%
6-10%

2004
11.62%
9-10%
6-10%

26. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Parent Company
The Parent Company’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, notes, finance leases,
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments was to fund the
Parent Company’s investments in associated companies. The Parent Company holds equity in
associated companies, which may or may not result in receipt of dividends in a given year, and has
various other financial assets and liabilities which arise directly from its operations.
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The main risks that may arise from the Parent Company’s financial instruments are cash flow risk,
equity investment risk, foreign currency exchange and revaluation risk and financial markets risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.
Cash Flow Risk
This risk refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to the risk of lower returns on its investments or
the necessity to borrow due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in their
timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows from dividends and asset sales and these may
not come in as expected.
To manage the risk, the Parent Company obtains the concurrence of associated companies on
dividends forecast used in the restructuring plan. It is also working on getting creditor acceptance
for a debt-for-asset swap to reduce the level of principal debt.
Equity Investment Risk
This refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to fluctuations in the value of equity securities or
income streams from equity ownership in associated companies.
To manage the risk, a monitoring process is in place to validate financial forecasts against actual
numbers and to ensure that the value of the Parent Company’s equity investments is not depleted.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and Foreign Currency Revaluation Risk
Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates may expose the Parent Company to economic and
accounting losses related to large direct and indirect foreign currency-denominated obligations.
Extraordinary fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect reported operational
profits and retained earnings, potentially reducing the ability of associated companies to declare
dividends.
The Parent Company assumes 3% foreign exchange depreciation per annum in its financial model
and is negotiating to put a cap on foreign exchange losses in its restructuring plan. It is also
monitoring the mitigation plans of associated companies in relation to foreign currency revaluation
risk.
Financial Markets Risk
Movements in market prices of financial instruments, foreign currency exchange and interest rates,
stock market indices, etc., may affect the value of the Parent Company’s financial assets and stock
price, which may also affect the cost of capital and/or its ability to raise capital.
The Parent Company negotiates with creditors for a cap on interest rates, or for a fixed interest rate
on debt to minimize this risk.
ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise of bank loans,
finance leases and, and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance ABS-CBN’s operations. ABS-CBN has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.
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ABS-CBN also enters into derivative transactions, including principally interest rate swaps, cross
currency swaps and currency forward contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and
currency risks arising from ABS-CBN’s operations and its sources of finance.
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, ABS-CBN’s policy that no trading in
financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from ABS-CBN’s financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.
Interest Rate Risk
ABS-CBN’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to its longterm debt obligations with a floating interest rate.
To manage this mix in a cost-efficient manner, ABS-CBN enters into interest rate swaps, in which
it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. These swaps are
designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. As of December 31, 2005, after taking into
account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 45% of the Company’s borrowings are at a
fixed rate of interest.
Foreign Currency Risk
ABS-CBN’s primary exposure to the risk in changes in foreign currency relates to the its longterm debt obligation. Approximately 50% of these obligations are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating unit.
ABS-CBN enters into cross currency swaps, to manage this risk and eliminate the variability of
cash flows due to changes in the fair value of the foreign currency-denominated debt maturing
more than 1 year.
Other than the debt obligations, ABS-CBN has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure
arises when the transaction is denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operating unit or the counterparty.
Credit Risk
ABS-CBN trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. Customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that ABS-CBN’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of ABS-CBN, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets and certain derivative instruments, its
exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amount of these instruments.
Since ABS-CBN trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
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Liquidity Risk
ABS-CBN’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans and finance leases.
2. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of consolidated
financial assets and liabilities recognized as of December 31, 2005.

Current financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Derivative assets
Total current financial assets
Noncurrent financial assets:
Available-for-sale investments
Long-term receivables from related parties
Total noncurrent financial assets
Total financial assets
Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantee
and commitments
Derivative liabilities
Total current financial liabilities
Noncurrent financial liabilities Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total financial liabilities

Carrying
Amounts

Fair Values

P2,341
=
4,695
193
7,229

P2,341
=
4,695
828
7,864

756
2,342
3,098
=10,327
P

756
2,342
3,098
=10,962
P

P8,866
=
11,646

P8,866
=
10,319

10,361
104
30,977

10,361
104
29,650

4,320
=35,297
P

6,399
=36,049
P

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables: Due to the
short-term nature of transactions, the fair values of these instruments approximate the carrying
amounts as of balance sheet date.
Available-for-sale investments: The fair values were determined by reference to market bid
quotes as of balance sheet date.
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Interest-bearing loans and borrowings: Fair value was computed based on the following:
Debt Type

Fair Value Assumptions

Term loan

Estimated fair value is based on the discounted value of
future cash flows using the applicable risk free rates for
similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk.

Other variable rate loans

The face value approximates fair value because of recent
and frequent repricing based on market conditions.

Forward foreign exchange contracts and bifurcated foreign currency forwards: The fair values
were determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.
Interest Rate Risk
The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Company’s consolidated
financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:
2005 Fixed Rate

Within
1 Year
8,058

1-2 years
153

2-3 Years
172

3-4 years
64

4-5 Years
–

More
than 5 Years
12

Total
8,459

2005 Floating Rate

Within
1 Year
3,587

1-2 years
1,439

2-3 Years
1,532

3-4 years
949

4-5 Years
–

More
than 5 Years
–

Total
7,507

2004 Fixed Rate

Within
1 Year
8,442

1-2 years
153

2-3 Years
151

3-4 years
170

4-5 Years
63

More
than 5 Years
12

Total
8,991

2004 Floating Rate

Within
1 Year
10,179

1-2 years
1,039

2-3 Years
1,284

3-4 years
1,370

4-5 Years
850

More
than 5 Years
–

Total
14,722

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than one
year. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument. The other financial instruments of the Company that are not included in the above
tables are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
Derivative Instruments
Cross Currency Swaps. In 2004, ABS-CBN entered into long-term cross currency swaps that
hedge 100% of the Tranche A Principal against foreign exchange risk. The long-term principalonly currency swaps have an aggregate notional amount of US$54.6 million as of December 31,
2005 and a weighted average swap rate of P
=56.01 to US$1. Under these agreements, ABS-CBN
effectively swaps the principal amount of certain US dollar-denominated loans under the SCA into
Philippine peso-denominated loans with payments up to June 2009.
ABS-CBN is also obligated to pay swap costs based on a fixed rate of 8.0% on a notional amount
of P
=1.3 billion, 5.125% on a notional amount P
=203 million, 3-month PHIREF minus 2.9% on a
notional amount P
=1.7 billion and 3-month PHIREF minus 3.1% on a notional amount on
=264 million.
P
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28. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit (loss) for the year
attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss)
attributable to equity holders of the parent (after deducting interest on the convertible bonds) by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential shares into
shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:
2005
(a) Income (loss) attributable to equity holders of
the parent from continuing operations
(b) Income (loss) attributable to equity holders of
the parent from discontinued operations
(c) Income (loss) attributable to equity holders of
the parent
Interest on convertible bonds and amortization
of bond issue cost.
(d) Net income (loss) attributable to equity holders of
the parent - diluted
(e) Weighted average number of common shares basic (see Note 30)
Conversion of bonds (see Note 16)
(f) Adjusted weighted average common shares - diluted
Per Share Amounts
Income (loss) attributable to equity holders
of parent (c/e)
Income (loss) from continuing operations attributable
to equity holders of the parent (a/e)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the parent (b/e)

P
=293

2004
(In Millions)

=301
P

439

(1,506)

732

(1,205)

1
733

1
(1,204)

4,581,544,408
3,421,410
4,584,965,818

4,581,544,408
3,421,410
4,584,965,818

P
=0.1598

(P
=0.2630)

0.0639

0.0657

0.0958

(0.3287)
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There have been no other transactions involving shares or potential shares between the reporting
date and the date of completion of these financial statements.
The effect of the conversion of the Perpetual Convertible Bonds is anti-dilutive for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004.
29. Commitments
Parent Company
a. The Parent Company acts as a surety to guarantee the payment of principal and interest of the
convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel with a redemption value of US$167 million
(US$160.7 million as of commencement date of BSMP).
b. The Parent Company and Lopez have entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement (SA) with
certain shareholders (option holders) of Bayantel where the shareholders have the option to
require the Parent Company and Lopez to purchase shares of Bayantel (option shares) from
them under certain conditions. The options can be exercised upon the occurrence of certain
events specified in the SA or in 2002, whichever comes first. The purchase price of the option
share shall be the greater of the aggregate cost price in US dollars of the relevant option shares
paid by the shareholders thereof amounting to an initial investment of approximately US$20
million plus interest at the US Prime Rate compounded annually from the date of the relevant
purchase to the date of the exercise of the option or the fair market value of the option share.
The Parent Company has provided the following amounts for certain Bayantel options due on
October 24, 2002 before payments made on December 2, 2002:
1) Amount owed to Chase Manhattan Bank (Chase) - US$6.46 million (US$6.35 million as
of commencement date of BSMP); and
2) Amount owed to Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF) - US$43.93 million (US$43.03 million
as of commencement date of BSMP).
Both Chase and AIF have indicated the value of the option shares to be higher.
c. The Parent Company entered into a non-competition and non-solicitation agreement under the
Stock Purchase Agreement for the sale of its interest in C-Cubed in 2003. Under the Stock
Purchase Agreement, the Parent Company and its directly and indirectly-owned subsidiaries
shall not engage in any call center service within a five-year period except for servicing
internal requirements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries.
ABS-CBN
d. On June 1, 2005, ABS-CBN and ABS-CBN International entered in to a 25-year Deal
Memorandum (Memorandum) with DirecTV in which ABS-CBN granted DirecTV the
exclusive right via satellite, internet protocol technology and satellite master antenna
television system or similar system, to display, exhibit, perform and distribute certain
programs of ABS-CBN that are listed in the Memorandum. ABS-CBN International may
engage in any marketing plan mutually agreed by both parties and DirecTV may engage in
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ABS-CBN International. All costs under any mutually agreed marketing plans shall be shared
equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN International.
As provided in the Memorandum, all rights, title and interest in and to the content, discrete
programs or channels not granted to DirecTV are expressly reserved by ABS-CBN. All
programming decisions with respect to the programs shall be in ABS-CBN’s commercially
reasonable discretion, including the substitution or withdrawal of any scheduled programs,
provided that ABS-CBN agrees that the programs will consist substantially the same content
and genre provided for in the Memorandum.
The Memorandum also provides for the following license fees to be paid by DirecTV to
ABS-CBN:
a. A license fee for each existing DTH subscriber of ABS-CBN International or a new
subscriber who becomes an activated subscriber during the migration period (from
June 2005 to February 2006); and
b. An additional license fee for each activated subscriber who becomes an activated
subscriber during the migration period that remains a subscriber for 14 consecutive
months.
The Memorandum also provides that subscription revenues, computed as the current and stand
alone retail price per month for a subscription to the TFC channel multiplied by the average
number of subscribers, shall be divided equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN
International.
Starting July 2005, existing DTH subscribers of ABS-CBN International have been migrating
to DirecTV. As of December 31, 2005, license fee amounting to P
=1,619 million have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. ABS-CBN International’s share in the
subscription revenues earned from subscribers that have migrated to DirecTV amounted to
=
P93 million in 2005.
On January 17, 2006, ABS-CBN and DirecTV agreed to amend the Memorandum entered in
June 1, 2005 that includes among others the extension of the migration period from
February 2006 to August 2006.
FPHC Group
e. Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)
First Gas Power Corporation (FGPC) and First Gas Power (FGP), subsidiaries of FPHC, have
separate PPAs with MERALCO, the sole customer of both subsidiaries. Under the PPAs,
MERALCO will purchase in each contract year from the start of commercial operations, a
minimum number of kilowatt-hours of the net electrical output of FGPC and FGP for a period
of 25 years. Billings to MERALCO under the PPAs are substantially in US dollars and a
small portion billed in Philippine pesos.
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On January 7, 2004, MERALCO, FGPC and FGP signed the Amendment to their respective
PPAs. The negotiations resulted in a package of concessions including FGPC and FGP
shouldering local community taxes at current tax rate, while conditional concessions include
increasing discounts on excess generation, paying higher penalties for non-performance up to
a capped amount, recovery of accumulated deemed delivered energy until 2011 resulting in
non-charging of MERALCO of excess generation charge for such energy delivered beyond
the contracted amount but within a 90% capacity quota. The effectivity of the amended terms
of the respective PPAs of FGPC and FGP is subject to certain conditions, including ERC
approval.
Bauang Private Power Corporation (BPPC), an associate of FPHC, has an existing Project
Agreement with NPC. Under the Project Agreement, NPC supplies all fuel inventory to
generate electricity, with all electricity generated purchased by NPC. BPPC is entitled to
payment of fixed capacity and operation and maintenance fees based on the nominated
capacity as well as energy fees from the delivery of electric power to NPC. The Project
Agreement will be for a period of 15 years up to 2010. Upon expiration of the 15-year period,
BPPC shall transfer to NPC all of its rights, titles and interests in the power plant complex,
free of liens created by the BPPC and without any compensation.
FPIDC Group
f.

North Luzon Tollway Project (the NLE Tollway Project) Agreements
i)

Joint Venture Agreement (JVA)
MNTC was established in accordance with a JVA between FPIDC and PNCC for the sole
purpose of implementing the Project. PNCC, as the franchise holder for the construction,
operation and maintenance of toll facilities in the North and South Luzon Tollways and
the Metro Manila Expressway, has assigned its rights, interests and privileges under its
franchise to construct, operate and maintain toll facilities in the NLE in favor of MNTC.
FPIDC, in turn, assigned to MNTC all of its rights, interests and privileges to the ManilaSubic Expressway Project which became a part of the North Luzon Tollway Project.
The North Luzon Tollway Project is divided into three phases, as described below.
Phase I

Rehabilitation and expansion of approximately 84 kilometers (km) of the
existing NLE and an 8.8-km stretch of a greenfield expressway

Phase II

Construction of the northern parts of the 17-km circumferential road C-5
which connects the current C-5 expressway to the NLE

Phase III

Construction of the 57-km Subic arm of the NLE to SBMA and the
5.85-km road from McArthur to Letre

The construction of Phase I of the Project started on February 11, 2003. On January 26,
2005, the Certificate of Substantial Completion (CSC) of Phase I was issued by the
Independent Certification Engineer of the Project. On January 27, 2005, the Toll
Regulatory Board issued the Toll Operation Permit (TOP) for the operation and
maintenance of Phase I consisting of Segments 1, 2, 3 and 7 in favor of MNTC. The CSC
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and TOP became effective on February 8, 2005 upon MNTC’s compliance with the
specified conditions. MNTC took over the NLE from PNCC and commenced commercial
operations on February 10, 2005.
ii) Shareholders’ Agreements
On December 16, 1999, FPIDC, PNCC and Egis Projects, S.A (EGIS) (collectively
referred to as the “Principal Shareholders of MNTC”) entered into a Shareholders’
Agreement (SA) to govern their rights and duties as shareholders of MNTC as well as the
management, financing, and operations of FPIDC. The SA was amended on
December 13, 2001 extending the term of the original SA.
On January 14, 2003, the Principal Shareholders of MNTC and Leighton Asia Limited
(LAL) entered into a Shareholder Loan Agreement (SLA) to reflect the entry of LAL as a
new shareholder through the acquisition of 10% interest in MNTC from FPIDC and a
further 6.5% interest through additional equity infusion. The SLA amended the equity
sharing of the shareholders under the SA to: FPIDC - 67.1%; LAL - 16.5%; EGIS 13.9%; and PNCC - 2.5%. The transfer of the 10% interest in MNTC from FPIDC to
LAL was finalized on February 3, 2003.
On September 30, 2004, the Principal Shareholders of MNTC and LAL amended and
restated the SA dated December 31, 2001. The following important provisions of SA
(as amended and restated) in addition to the provisions noted in the amended SA as
follows:
a. FPIDC and LAL acknowledged that the 10% shares of LAL were transferred by
FPIDC to LAL in consideration of: (i) LAL’s agreement to, prior to the crossover date
(date which the equity funding is equivalent to US$125.5 million), make the
FPIDC/LAL Proxy Shareholder Contribution in behalf of FPIDC under the
Shareholder Contribution Agreement amounting to P
=352.38 million or approximately
US$7 million; and (ii) LAL’s agreement to pay FPIDC under section 8.04.02 of the
revised and amended SA should LAL decide to sell at least 10% of FPIDC’s total
issued capital stock.
b. The final equity participation described in the amended SA dated December 31, 2001
was revised as follows: FPIDC - 67.1%; LAL - 16.5%; EGIS - 13.9%; and PNCC 2.5%, which agreed with the SLA entered on January 14, 2003.
c. The guarantee fee, calculated at 2.5% per annum fee and being billed by FPIDC and
EGIS, shall be payable within 60 days from receipt of invoice.
iii) Tollways Management Corporation (TMC)
TMC is the operator of Phase I of the North Luzon Tollway Project of MNTC under an
Operations and Maintenance Agreement (O&M Agreement) with MNTC. On
February 10, 2005, pursuant to the O&M Agreement, TMC took over the operations and
maintenance of Phase I of the NLE, including Segment 7 from FPIDC.

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

115

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

g. In connection with the financing closing of MNTC, FPIDC has entered into the following
major agreements on July 7, 2001:
i. Shareholder Contribution Agreement with the other shareholders of MNTC, the Parent
Company, Lopez, Transroute International S.A. (TISA), the security trustee, the cosecurity trustee, inter-creditor agent and MNTC which provides, among others, for the
Principal Shareholders to make additional equity contributions to MNTC in order to meet
the required debt-to-base equity ratio prior to the proposed drawdown date.
ii. Sponsor Support Agreement (SSA) with EGIS, the security trustee, the co-security trustee,
inter-creditor agent and MNTC, which provides, among others, for FPIDC and EGIS to
provide certain support to MNTC up to a maximum of US$25.0 million. The SSA
provides for certain restrictions with respect to, among others, waiver, modification,
amendment or assignment of the key project agreements, merge or amalgamate or be
consolidated with any other person or entity and enter into any arrangement or
commitment on terms less favorable to MNTC than arm’s length open market terms
unless otherwise approved by the lenders. The Parent Company has guaranteed the
obligations of FPIDC as MNTC sponsor under the SSA.
The above agreements were amended on January 30, 2003 to reflect certain changes in the
deal, mainly: (a) the replacement of the Parent Company with FPHC, and the removal of
Lopez in the Financing Agreements; (b) the entry of LAL as a new shareholder of MNTC
and the revised shareholders’ structure; and (c) credit enhancement of the FPHC guarantee
under the SSA through the provision of FPIDC of a sponsor support letter of credit
equivalent to US$21.1 million.
On December 28, 2005, the lenders of MNTC, through the inter-creditor agent, confirmed
that the conditions to the reduction of the sponsor support commitment have been met.
This allowed the reduction of the US$25.0 million commitment to US$3 million,
computed based on the sum of the post-material completion (MC) works reserve amount
and the estimated right-of-way dispossession exposure. Of this total, FPIDC provided
security for US$2.85 million in the form of an irrevocable standby letter of credit while
EGIS provided security for the balance of US$0.47 million in the form of a corporate
guarantee. The remaining commitment is subject to further reduction on a quarterly basis
depending on the accomplishment of post-MC works.
h. Transactions with Subsidiaries and Associates
 FPIDC provided interest-bearing advances to MNTC. The advances were covered by
Shareholder Loan Agreements amounting to US$6.9 million. The advances are payable
90 days after First Repayment Date, in accordance with the Trust and Retention Agreement
or on March 15, 2005 subject to availability of cash in the Restricted Payment Account and
the provision of the amended and restated SA. Interest on the advances are computed at
LIBOR plus a 4% spread.
 FPIDC has an Operation and Maintenance Agreement (S7 O&M) with MNTC whereby
MNTC appointed FPIDC as the operator of the Segment 7 of the NLE Project. Segment 7
(also known as the SBMA-Tipo Road) connects Tipo in Hermosa, Bataan to Subic. Under
the S7 O&M, FPIDC shall operate and maintain Segment 7 under the terms and conditions
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of the Supplemental Toll Operations Agreement until the commencement of commercial
operation of Phase 1 of the NLE. FPIDC retains all toll derived from the operation of
Segment 7 as a tolled motorway, including any and all incidental revenues as may be
derived in relation to its operation of Segment 7.
 TMC took over the operations and maintenance of the Phase 1 of NLE, including
Segment 7, on February 10, 2005.
i.

Transactions with Affiliates
Two separate agreements on the shareholders’ corporate guarantee (collectively, “Corporate
Guarantees”) were executed by FPIDC and TISA (collectively known as “Guarantors”) with
MNTC, whereby each has guaranteed the liability of TMC under the O&M Agreement in the
following percentages: TISA - 34% and FPIDC - 66%. On August 29, 2003, TMC and the
Guarantors, entered into a Memorandum of Agreement, whereby, for and in consideration of
the agreement and of the full and faithful compliance by the parties of the terms and
conditions, the parties agreed that TMC shall book all accruing Guarantee Fees stipulated in
the amended SA as payable to the Guarantors from February 11, 2003 until the termination of
the Corporate Guarantees. Any guarantee fee not paid within 30th of June and 31st of
December of each year (“the Payment Dates”) shall earn interest computed from the relevant
Payment Date up to the date of actual payment of Guarantee Fees. Interest is at 91-day
Philippine TB Rate plus 2% per annum as defined in the O&M Agreement.

30. Capital Stock
Details of the Parent Company’s capital stock follow:
Number of Shares

Amount
(In Millions)

Common shares - P
=1 par value
Authorized shares

5,500,000,000

=5,500
P

Issued shares

4,581,544,408

=4,581
P

31. Other Matters
a. In 1972, ABS-CBN discontinued its operations when the government took possession of its
property and equipment. In the succeeding years, the properties were used without
compensation to ABS-CBN by Radio Philippine Network, Inc. (RPN) from 1972 to 1979, and
Maharlika Broadcasting System (MBS) from 1980 to 1986. A substantial portion of these
property and equipmet was also used from 1986 to 1992 without compensation to ABS-CBN
by People’s Television 4, another government entity. In 1986, ABS-CBN resumed
commercial operations and it was granted temporary permits by the government to operate
several television and radio stations.
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ABS-CBN, together with Chronicle Broadcasting System, filed a civil case on January 14,
1988 against Ferdinand E. Marcos and his family, RPN, MBS, et. al., before the
Sandiganbayan to press collection of the unpaid rentals for the use of its facilities from
September 1972 to February 1986 totaling P
=305 million plus legal interest compounded
quarterly and exemplary damages of P
=100 million.
ABS-CBN’s BOD resolved on June 27, 1991 to declare as scrip dividends, in favor of all
stockholders of record as of that date, whatever amount that may be recovered from the
foregoing pending claims and the rentals subsequently settled in 1995. The scrip dividends
were declared on March 29, 2000. In 2003, additional scrip dividends of P
=13 million were
recognized for the said stockholders.
On April 28, 1995, ABS-CBN and the government entered into a compromise settlement of
rentals from 1986 to 1992. The compromise agreement includes payments to ABS-CBN of
=30 million (net of government’s counterclaim against ABS-CBN of P
P
=68 million) by way of
tax credits or other forms of noncash settlement as full and final settlement of the rentals from
1986 to 1992. The tax credit certificates were issued in 1998.
b. ABS-CBN has contingent liabilities with respect to claims and lawsuits filed by third parties.
The events that transpired last February 4, 2006, which resulted in the death of 71 people and
injury to about 200 others led ABS-CBN to shoulder the burial expenses of the dead and
medical expenses of the injured, which did not result in any direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to ABS-CBN. As of March 29, 2006, ABS-CBN has settled all of
the funeral and medical expenses of the victims of the tragedy. Given the income flows and
net asset base of ABS-CBN, said expenses do not constitute a material financial obligation of
ABS-CBN, as ABS-CBN remains in sound financial position to meet its obligations.
Management, after consultations with outside legal counsels, is of the opinion that the
eventual liability from these claims cannot be presently determined, if any, and an adverse
judgment in any one case will not materially affect its financial position and results of
operations.
c. Certain subsidiaries and associates have contingent liabilities with respect to claims, lawsuits
and tax assessments. The respective management of subsidiaries and associates, after
consultations with outside counsels, believe that the final resolution of these issues will not
materially affect their respective financial position and results of operations.
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32. Reclassifications
The following accounts in ABS-CBN’s December 31, 2004 consolidated financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation:
Nature

Amount

Balance Sheet:
Production and distribution business under “Other noncurrent
assets” to Program rights and other intangible assets
Due from related parties to Trade and other receivables
CPI receivable from Sky Vision under “ Trade and other
receivables” to Long-term receivable from related parties
Advances to associates to Trade and other receivables
Program rights - current to Noncurrent program rights and other
intangible assets
Movie-in-progress under “Other current asset” account
to Program rights - current
Due to related parties to Trade and other payables
Obligations for program rights - net of current portion to
Obligations for program rights
Statement of Income:
Other expenses under “General and administrative expenses” to
Other expenses “Cost of Sales” account
Amortization, previously shown as a separate line item to:
Amortization of deferred charges under “General and
administrative expenses”
Amortization of Debt issue cost under “Finance Costs”
Depreciation previously shown as a separate line item, shown to:
Production costs
Cost of sales and services
General and administrative expenses
Gross-up of Agency commission, incentives and co-producers’
share to Revenues - Sales and Services

(In Millions)

=618
P
262
390
1
126
36
162
124
15
91
108
541
40
566
151

33. Amendments on Value Added Tax (VAT) and Income Tax Laws
On May 24, 2005, the President signed into law RA No. 9337 amending certain provisions of the
NIRC of 1997, as amended, which took effect on July 1, 2005, introducing the following changes:
i.

RCIT rate for domestic corporations and resident and non-resident foreign corporations is
increased to 35% (from 32%) beginning November 1, 2005 and the rate will be reduced to
30% beginning January 1, 2009. RCIT rate shall be applied on the amount computed by
multiplying the number of months covered by the new rate within the fiscal year by the
taxable income of the corporation for the period, divided by 12 months.
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ii.

Power of the President upon the recommendation of the Secretary of Finance to increase
the rate of value added tax (VAT) to 12% (from 10%), after any of the following
conditions has been satisfied:


VAT collection as a percentage of gross domestic product (GDP) of the previous year
exceeds two and four-fifth percent (2 4/5%); or



National government deficit as a percentage of GDP of the previous year exceeds one
and one-half percent (1 1/2%).

On January 31, 2006, a Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 7-2006 was issued approving
the recommendation of the Secretary of Finance to increase VAT to 12% (from 10%)
effective February 1, 2006.
iii.

Input VAT on capital goods should be spread evenly over the useful life or 60 months,
whichever is shorter, if the acquisition cost, excluding the VAT component thereof,
exceeds P
=1.0 million.

iv.

Input VAT credit shall not exceed output VAT, otherwise, VAT liability before
withholding VAT credits shall be computed equivalent to 30% of output VAT.

34. Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Suspended concession fee payments and related
interest to MWSS
Acquisition of property and equipment under
capital lease
Acquisition of property and equipment on
account
Acquisition of program rights on account
Acquisition of property and equipment as
settlement of trade receivables
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2005

2004

P
=–

=2,425
P

108

82

81
266

21
315

44

–

Company Chart and Corporate Addresses

COMPANY CHART
BENPRES*
POWER
FPHC*
First Gen*
Meralco*
COMMUNICATIONS
ABS-CBN*/**
SKYCable
BayanTel
INFRASTRUCTURE
FPIDC
MNTC
OTHER INVESTMENTS
Rockwell
The Medical City
Notes:
* Listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange
** Media assets transferred to Lopez, Inc.

CORPORATE ADDRESSES
BENPRES HOLDINGS
CORPORATION
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 9103040

MANILA NORTH TOLLWAYS
CORPORATION
2/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6384380

ABS-CBN BROADCASTING
CORPORATION
Sgt. Esguerra Ave. corner
Mother Ignacia St.
Diliman, Quezon City
Tel. (632) 924-4101 to 22

ROCKWELL LAND CORPORATION
Rockwell Drive, Bel-Air, Makati City
Tel. (632) 8906888

SKY VISION CORPORATION
G/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 9102288
BAYAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS
HOLDINGS CORPORATION
BayanTel Corporate Center
Maginhawa corner Malingap Sts.
Teachers Village East
Diliman, Quezon City
Tel. (632) 4493000
FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS
CORPORATION
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6318024
FIRST GEN CORPORATION
3/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 4496400
MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
Ortigas Ave., Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6312222
FIRST PHILIPPINE
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION
5/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6343715

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES,
INCORPORATED
(The Medical City)
Ortigas Ave., Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6356789
STOCK AND TRANSFER AGENT
Securities Transfer Services, Inc.
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6318024 ext. 6157
LEGAL COUNSEL
The Law Firm of Quiason Makalintal
Barot Torres & Ibarra
21/F Robinsons—PCIBank Tower
ADB Ave. corner Poveda Road
Pasig City
Tel. (632) 6310981
EXTERNAL AUDITORS
SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
SGV Building
6760 Ayala Ave., Makati City
Tel. (632) 8910307
BANKERS
Bank of the Philippine Islands
Equitable PCI Bank
Banco de Oro
ING Bank Manila
Philam Saving Bank
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Contact Information

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Cybele Lucero-Regalado
Tel. (632) 4492418
Fax. (632) 6343009
E-mail. ir_benpres@benpres.com.ph
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
& MEDIA RELATIONS
Rosan Cruz
Tel. (632) 4492856
Fax. (632) 6333520
E-mail. rcruz@benpres.com.ph
Carla Paras-Sison
Tel. (632) 4492467
Fax. (632) 6333520
E-mail. cpsison@benpres.com.ph
Internet users can access information at
www.benpres-holdings.com
All information in this Annual Report is
correct to the best of our knowldege, but
does not constitute an assumption of liability
or a guarantee of particular characteristics.
This publication may not be reprinted in its
entirety or in part without the company’s
permission.
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